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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-first (21) Annual General Meeting of the Members of
IFCI Factors Limited will be held on Thursday, September 15, 2016 at 11 a.m at 10" floor, IFCI
Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi 110019 at IFCI Tower, 10" Floor, 61 Nehru Place, New
Delhi-110019, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2016 and the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year
2016-17 as appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India and to pass the
following Resolution, with or without modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(5), 142 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to decide and fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditor(s) of the Company appointed by
Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the Financial Year 2016-17, as may be deemed
fit.”

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sudhir Garg (DIN: 06777363), who retires by'rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

By Order of Board of Directors

July 30, 2016 Samir Raheja
New Delhi Sr.AVP & Company Secretary

IFCI Factors Limited

Registered Office:

10" Floor, IFCI Tower, 61,

Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019
CIN: U74899DL1995G0I1074649
Phone; +91-11-41642840
Website: www.ifcifactors.com

Email: samir@ifcifactors.com




Notes:

1.

10.

11.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “"AGM”) is entitled
to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the Proxy need not be
a member of the company. The instrument appointing the Proxy should, however, be
deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the
commencement of AGM. A person can act as a Proxy on behalf of members not exceeding
fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as Proxy and
such person shall not act as a Proxy for any other person or shareholder.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the
AGM and ending with the conclusion of the AGM, a Member would be entitled to inspect the
proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not
less than three days of Notice in writing is given to the Company.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice as well as the other documents as
required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and
Holidays between 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. up to the date of this AGM. The Registers
required to be maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available
for Inspection at the AGM.

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the AGM
are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of their Board Resolution/s
authorising their representative/s to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM.

Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report
to the AGM. ‘
In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order
of names will be entitled to vote.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and/or the Statement are pen for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business
hours on any working day excluding Saturdays, till the date of the ensuing AGM.

Members are hereby informed that pursuant to-Section 205A (5) of the then Companies Act,
1956, (“the previous Act”), the Company is obliged to transfer any money lying in the
Unpaid Dividend Account, which remains unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years
from the date of such transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account, to the credit of Investors
Education and Protection Fund “Fund”) established by the Central Government under
Subsection (1) of Section 205C of the previous Act. No claim shall lie against the Company
or the Fund in respect of individual amounts of dividend remaining unclaimed or unpaid for
a period of seven years and transferred to the Fund as aforesaid.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register
their e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices,
Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically. -
Members are requested to kindly communicate immediately any change in their address, if
any, to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

Members are requested to intimate to the Company any queries regarding the
accounts/notices at least ten days before the AGM to enable the management to keep the
information ready at the AGM.

Brief profile of Mr.Sudhir Garg, Non-Executive Director, is given in the Corporate
Governance Report.



Form No. MGT-11

Proxy Form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1995GQI1074649
Registered Office: 10" Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019
Website: www.ifcifactors.com Email: Samir@ifcifactors.com

Name of the member (s):

..................................................................................................................................

P D ettt et ettt A e e n A b e e er et te et ee e ereaee e reerans
I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:
1. Name:...cooviccinn, AArESS:.....oirriircarrresir s

E-mail Idi .o Signature:......coceecveeveeeecerrrnana or failing him;
2. Name:. oo, AdAresS: ...

E-mail Id:......cocoiiiiiinn i ereeneen s Signature:. ..o vecnnes or failing him;
3. Name:.. oo, AdArESS: ...t

E-mail Idi. e SIgnature: ..o

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 21
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the September 15, 2016 at 10 floor,
IFCI Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi at 11 A.M. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolution/s as are indicated below:



Resolutio Resolution/s Matter Optional
n No.
Ordinary Business For | Against
1. Adoption of Financial Statements for the financial year ended March
31, 2016 and the report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
2. Fixing the Remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the Company. for
the financial year 2016-17 as appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India
3. Appointment of Mr. Sudhir Garg, retiring by rotation
Affix Revenue
Signed this ....uuxs day Of ...eccasmmmnsnssssssssnnnnsnsnnnn , 2016 Stamp not less
than Rs. 0.15
Signature of Shareholder........cuiumxiinanxninnm
Signature of Proxy holder(s).....csxuueacrrenssnnss
Note:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting. ‘

. A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members upto and not exceeding fifty and holding in

the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. Further,
a Member holding more than ten percent, of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for
any other person or Member.

* it is optional to put a X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in
the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions, your
proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

Proxyholders may please carry their identity proofs while coming at the Annual General
Meeting.




IFCI Factors Limited
CIN : U74899DL1995G0I1074649
Registered Office: 10th floor IFCI Tower 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019
Website: www.ifcifactors.com Email: samir@ifcifactors.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

21% Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, the 15" day of September, 2016 at 11.00 a.m at
10t Floor, IFCI Tower 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019.

Name (IN BLOCK
LETTERS)

Address

Registered Folio No.
/ Dp Id & Client Id
Shareholder / Proxy/
Authorised
Representative

Mobile No

E-Mail Id | ]

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 21% Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company
being held on Thursday, the 15™ day of September, 2016 at 11.00 a.m at 10" Floor, IFCI Tower .
61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 1100109.

Signature of Shareholder / Proxy / Authorised Representative
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DIRECTORS’' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

The Board of Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 21% Annual Report of
the Company together with the Audited Financial Statement of Accounts for the year ended on
March 31, 2016.

Financial Results

The Financial Results of your Company for the year under review are summarized as under:

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars - Year ended | Year ended
31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015

Total Income 9,092.47 10,565.48
Financial Charges 5,706.22 7,013.82
Personnel and Other Expenses 1,274.94 1,132.88
Profit / (Loss) Before Provisions & Write-Offs 2,111.31 2,418.78
Provisions & Write-Offs 7,667.17 11,233.59
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (5,555.86) (8,814.81)
Provision for Taxation - 73.23
Deferred Tax (1,188.52) (2,931.92)
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (4,367.34) (5,956.12)
Appropriations:
Profit / (Loss) Brought down from Balance Sheet (4,409.00) 1,557.00
Profit / (Loss) carried to Balance Sheet (8,776.34) (4,409.00)

State of affairs of the Company

During the year under report, your Company continues to be a major provider of factoring
services in India. The FY 2015-16 had been a tough year for your Company amidst the
challenging macro-economic environment. The Banking and financial sector has been badly hit
in the overall challenging macro-economic environment. During the year under report, your
Company achieved a turnover of Rs.1,909.21 crore (a decline of 9% Y-O-Y) and a gross income
of Rs.90.92 crore (a decline of 14% Y-O-Y). Further, your Company incurred a loss before tax
of Rs.55.56 crore and a loss after tax of Rs.43.67 crore.

The Government has taken notable steps to address the economic slowdown. During the year,
the Company has joined Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for Factoring (CGFF), having a corpus
of Rs. 500 crore, introduced by Ministry of Finance, to facilitate factoring transactions for
MSMEs. The scheme has the advantage of motivating the companies to increase their lending
to MSMEs against factored debts by partially sharing their risk and also an increase in actual
availability of credit to MSMEs. '

There is another scheme of Trade Receivables Discounting System (TReDS), designed by the
RBI, that focuses on setting up and operating the institutional mechanism for facilitating the
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financing of trade receivables from corporate and other buyers, including Govt. Departments
and PSUs, through multiple financiers. The TReDS will provide the platform to bring these
participants together for facilitating uploading, accepting, discounting, trading and settlement of
the invoices / bills. Further, in view of passing of Banking & Insolvency Bill, 2016 your Company
foresees strengthening of recovery mechanism and reduction in NPAs,

Certificate of Registration as NBFC-Factor

Your Company holds a Certificate of Registration as NBFC—Factor issued by Reserve Bank of
India to carry out the Factoring business. Your Company is thus classified as Non- Deposit
taking Systemically Important NBFC Factor (NBFC-ND- SI-Factor).

Dividend

With regard to the performance of your Company for the period ended on March 31, 2016 and
in view of the losses for the year, no dividend on Equity Shares has been recommended by the
Board for Financial Year 2015-16. Further, on account of losses, the dividend on 9%
Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares amounting to Rs. 1,85,025/- for FY
2014-15, Rs. 6,75,34,200/- for FY 2015-16, 10% Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference
Shares amounting to Rs. 5,05,68,264/- for FY 2015-16 stands accumulated to next year.
Transfer to Reserves

Your Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve in Financial Year 2015-16,
as it has incurred a loss after tax of Rs. 55.56 crore.

Capital Structure / alteration of Share Capital

The capital structure of your Company is given as under :

Authorized Share Capital

20,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 200,00,00,000/-
20,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-each aggregating to Rs. 200,00,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

7,93,57,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 79,35,77,000/-

7,50,38,000 9% Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each
aggregating to Rs. 75,03,80,000/-

10,00,43,160 10% Compuisory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each
aggregating to Rs.1,00,04,31,600/-

During the Financial Year 2015-16, the Authorised Capital of your Company was increased from
Rs. 300 crore to Rs. 400 crore. Further, during the year, your Company made Right Issue of
Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (*CCCPS") in ratio of 1:1.3 and allotted
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10,00,43,160 10% CCCPS of Rs. 10/- each, resulting in increase in the paid up capital of the
Company from Rs. 1,543,957,000 to Rs. 2,544,388,600.

Change in status of your Company

On account of IFCI Ltd., the holding company becoming a Government Company, in terms of
the provisions of Section 2 (45) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) your Company has also
become a Government Company with effect from April 7, 2015.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Board of Directors of your Company at present consists of eight Directors including five
Independent Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and one Managing Director.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sudhir Garg,
Director will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer
himself for reappointment.

During the year under review:

i) Mr. Satbir Singh, Deputy General Manager of IFCI Limited, the holding company, has been
appointed as Managing Director w.e.f August 10, 2015 in place of Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy,
whose nomination was withdrawn by IFCI Limited. The Directors place on record their deep
appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Mr.Bikash Kanti Roy during his tenure as
Managing Director.

i) Mr. Ankur Agarwal resigned as Company Secretary w.e.f. July 16, 2015 and Mr. Samir
Raheja was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f July 17, 2015.

fif) Mr. Lalit Bansal resigned as Chief Financial officer w.e.f January 29, 2016 and Mr. Manish
Jain was appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f February 05, 2016.

Disclosure of Nomination & Remuneration Policy

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and in
compliance of Section 178(3) of the Act framed a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for
selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, other employees and fixing
their remuneration including the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and related matters as provided under the aforesaid section. The
Nomination and Remuneration policy is enclosed at Annexure — 1.

Contracts or arrangements with Related Parties

In accordance with Accounting Standard 18 issued by the Chartered Accountants of India, the
transactions with Related Parties have been disclosed in Note no. 33 to the Notes to Accounts
and as per Form No. AOC-2. The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board
of Directors and Form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure II. The said Policy is also uploaded on the
website of your Company at www.ifcifactors.com.



Extract of Annual Return

The extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies
Act, 2013 is enclosed as Annexure-III in the prescribed form MGT-9 and forms part of this
Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, your Company has established Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and statutory disclosures in this regard are given in
Annexure IV which forms part of this Report. Further, the details of composition of the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and other details are also provided in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms part of this report.

Owing to continued losses and withdrawal of credit facility of Rs.50 crores availed by your
Company from Deutsche Bank during the year, which had a significant impact on the
operations, your Company could not spend any amount on CSR. In accordance with the
Guidelines on CSR & Sustainability issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, your
Company has deferred the CSR expenditure of Rs.95,24,260 (Rs. 32,49,348/- for the FY 2015-
16 and Rs. 62,74,912/- for FY 2014-15).

Human Resource Development

Your Company has continuously adopted structures that help attract the best external talent
and promote internal talent to higher roles and responsibilities. The Company’s people-centric
focus providing an open work environment fostering continuous improvement and development
helped several employees realize their career aspirations during the year.

During the year under report, your Company witnessed a high attrition rate and in order to
augment its headcount, your Company recruited two officers across various verticals. As on
March 31, 2016, your Company had thirty nine employees on its roll vis-a-vis fifty one
employees as on March 31, 2015.

Fixed Deposits

During the Financial Year March 31, 2016, your Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public.

Number of meetings of the Board

The Board meets at regular intervals and the intervening gap between the Meetings during the
Financial Year 2015-16 was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The
Board met six times in the Financial Year 2015-16 viz.,on April 30, 2015, July 30 2015, August
12, 2015, September 08, 2015, October 23, 2015 and February 05, 2016. The maximum
interval between any two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty one days.
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Composition of Audit Committee

Your Company has in place an Audit Committee of Directors in compliance with the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013. The details of composition of Audit Commmittee forms part of the
Corporate Governance Report appearing separately in the Annual Report.

Your Directors would further like to inform that there has been no matter where the Board has
not accepted recommendations of the Committee.

Board Evaluation

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has put in place the framework for the Board
Evaluation, Evaluation of Board Level Committees, Self - Evaluation and also the Evaluation of
Chairman’s performance.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman, Board, its Committees and individual Directors
was conducted. The same was based on feedback from all the Directors on the Board as a
whole, Committees and individual evaluation. Based on the feedback, the performance was
evaluated in the Meetings of NRC, Independent Directors and the Board.

Disclosure as Per Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy
on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the
provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. During the Financial Year 2015-16, your
Company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment.

Documents Placed on the Website at www.ifcifactors.com
The following documents have been placed on the website of the Company :

» Details of our contact information of Investor Grievance Officer
»  Details of unpaid dividend

» Contact details of Debenture Trustees

» Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

> Financial Statements

> Details of Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees

» The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors

> The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information

Related Party Transactions Policy

Policy on Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And
Redressal) Act, 2013

Y VY
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» Document Handling and Preservation Policy
> Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board and Senior Management
» Disclosures to the Stock Exchange

Independent Directors’ Declaration

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Sec 149 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act), and based on the
representations received from the management, the directors hereby confirm that:

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year 2015-16, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures; :

ii. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
loss of the Company for the financial year;

iii. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and
ability for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act. They confirm that there are adequate systems and controls for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities; '

iv. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v. the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating properly; and

vi. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments

As your Company is engaged in the business of financing Corporates in the capacity of being a
Non-Banking Financial Company, therefore the provisions of Section 186 except for Sub-Section
(1)] of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

Internal Control

Your Company has laid down a set of standards, processes and structure which enable
implementing internal financial control across the organization and ensure that the same are
adequate and operating effectively.
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Secretarial Audit Report

The Board of Directors of the Company appointed M/s. Poonam Ahuja & Associates, Practising
Company Secretaries, to conduct the Secretarial Audit and their Report on Company’s
Secretarial Audit is enclosed as Annexure V. Further, there were no qualification(s) or
observation(s) or other remarks made by the Secretarial Auditors in the Secretarial Audit
Report for the Financial Year 2015-16.

Risk Management

Your Company has in place approved Risk Management Policies wherein all material risks faced
by your Company are identified and assessed. Further, Risk Management is overseen by the
Risk Management Committee/Audit Committee on a continuous basis. The Committee oversees
your Company’s processes and policies for determining risk tolerance and reviews
management’s measurement and comparison of overall risk tolerance to established levels.
Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through
mitigating actions on a continuous basis.

Material changes and commitment affecting financial position of the Company

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year till the date of this report.

Vigil Mechanism

Your Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report their
genuine concerns to the appropriate authorities of any instances of unethical behavior, actual or
suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy and provides
safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. The policy permits all
the Directors and employees to report their concerns directly to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company. During the year under review, no instance of protected disclosure
has been made to the designated authority and no employee was denied access to the Audit
Committee. The details of the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigilance Policy are available on the
website of your Company at www.ifcifactors.com.

Subsidiaries/ Joint Venture/ Associate
Your Company does not have any subsidiary/ joint venture/ associate company.

Ratings for Term Borrowings

Your Company's borrowings have been assigned the following ratings by Credit Analysis &
Research Ltd. (CARE) and Brickwork:
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Facilities Rating Agency Rating Remarks

*Long-term Bank Facilities CARE Rating Reaffirmed
Care Al- (SO)

[Single A Minus (structured
obligation)]

*Short-Term Bank Facilities CARE Rating Reaffirmed

Care A (SO)
[A One (Structured Obligation)]

Long Term instruments (NCD) CARE Rating Reaffirmed
Care BBB (Triple B)

Brickwork
BWR A- (BWRA Minus)

*packed by Letter of Comfort from IFCI Ltd.

Statutory Auditors & Auditors’ Report

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) had appointed M/s. Chandiwala Virmani
and Associates (DE0155) (Firm Regd. No. 000082N), as Statutory Auditors of your Company for
the Financial Year 2015-16. There were no qualification(s) or observation(s) or other remarks
made by the Statutory Auditors in the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Your Company has received no comments from the C&AG under Section 143 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016. The no
review report received from C&AG is enclosed as Annexure VI.

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) had appointed M/s. Chandiwala Virmani
and Associates (DE0155) (Firm Regd. No. 000082N), as Statutory Auditors of your Company for
the Financial Year 2016-17. '

Corporate Governance

The report on Corporate Governance is appended herewith is enclosed and forms part of the
Annual Report.

Energy Cénservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo ’

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the other particulars relating to
conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption stipulated in the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are not applicable. During the year under review, there was no foreign earning and
expenditure in foreign exchange was Rs.99,74,773/-
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Address : 10th Floor, IFCI Tower
61, Nehru Place,
New Delhi 110019
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Annexure I

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

1. Background

3.

1.1

1.2

1.3

The objective of Nomination and Remuneration Policy is to ensure rationale and
objectivity in the remuneration of the Directors, Senior Management &
employees of the Company. The Policy also intends to bring in a pragmatic
methodology in screening of candidates who may be recommended to the
position of Directors and to establish effective evaluation criteria to evaluate the
performance of every Director and the overall Board of the Company.

The Policy also intends to prevent the Board of Directors degenerating into a
closed and narrow entity, in which incumbent members appoint their own kind.

The Policy also serves as a guiding principle to ensure good Corporate
Governance as well as to provide sustainability to the Board of Directors of the
Company.

Framework

2.1

2.2

2.3

The requirement of formulating a Nomination and Remuneration Policy stems out
from the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force.

References have also been made to the Guidelines of Reserve Bank of India
Corporate Governance Norms for NBFCs as prescribed by RBI and amended from
time to time.

Any other Law and Statute as may be applicable for the time being in force.

Objective

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

To identify suitable persons, interview them, if necessary, and recommend them
as suitable candidates to fill up vacancies on the Board or augment the Board
and Senior Management.

To develop a policy to ensure the optimum composition of the Board of Directors
ensuring a mix of knowledge, experience and expertise from diversified fields of
knowledge i.e. Policy on Board Diversity. The Policy also intends to add
professionalism and objectivity in the process of deciding Board membership.

To lay down criteria for the evaluation of the Board.

To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a Policy thereon.
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4.

3.5

To formulate criteria for evaluation of Directors.

Eligibility Criteria for recommending a candidate to be appointed on the

Board of Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may consider the following parameters
while considering the credentials of potential candidates for Directorship in the

Company.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Educational Qualification:

Possess any Graduation/ Post Graduation/ M. Phil / Doctorate
Possess any other Professional Qualification / Degree/ Diploma

Experience / Expertise

To possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more
fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration,
research, corporate governance, technical operations or other disciplines
related to the Company’s business.

The candidate should preferably have undergone requisite training
programme or mid - career Professional Development trainings which would
have enabled him/her to adapt to changing dynamics of business
environment.

Disqualifications

The Candidate should not be of unsound mind.

The Candidate should not be an undischarged insolvent.

The Candidate must not have applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and
his application must not be pending.

The Candidate must not have been convicted by a Court of any offence,
whether involving moral turpitude or otherwise, and sentenced in respect
thereof to imprisonment for not less than six (6) months.

There must not be any order passed by Court or Tribunal disqualifying a
person to be appointed as a Director.

There should not be any calls in respect of any shares of the Company held by
him, whether alone or jointly with others, and six months must not have
elapsed from the last date fixed for the payment of the call.

The Candidate must not have been convicted of the offence dealing with
related party transactions under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 at
any time during the last preceding five (5) years.

The Candidate must be holding his Director Identification Number (DIN).

The Candidate is not or has not been a Director of a Company which has not
filed Financial Statements or Annual Returns for any continuous three (3)
financial years.
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4.4

4.5

The Candidate is not or has not been a Director of the Company which has
failed to repay the deposits accepted by it or pay interest thereon or to
redeem any debentures on the due date or pay interest due thereon or pay
any dividend declared and such failure to pay or redeem continues for one
year or more.

The Candidate should not have been found guilty of any offence consisting of
violation of Rules/ Regulations/ Legislative requirements by Customs/ Excise/
Income Tax Authority/ Foreign Exchange/ Other Revenue Authorities.

Other Eligibility Criteria

Each director must be an individual of high personal and professional integrity
and ethical character.

The candidate should have exhibited behavior that indicates he or she is
committed to the highest ethical standards.

The candidate should not deprive the Company of any opportunity that
belongs to the Company. e -
He should not be in a position of diverting the corporate opportunity for own
benefits or to others, to the detriment of the Company.

The candidate must not at any time compete with the company in respect of
any business transaction.

Each director must possess the ability to exercise sound business judgment on
a broad range of issues.

The candidate has preferably had business, governmental, non-profit or
professional experience at the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer or equivalent policy-making and operational level of a large
organization that indicates that the candidate will be able to make a
meaningful and immediate contribution to the Board's discussion and decision-
making on the array of complex issues facing a large financial services
business.

The candidate has achieved prominence in his or her business, governmental
or professional activities, and has built a reputation that demonstrates the
ability to make the kind of important and sensitive judgments that the Board
is called upon to make.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee must be satisfied that the
candidate will effectively, consistently and appropriately take into account and
balance the legitimate interests and concerns of all of the Company's
shareholders and other stakeholders in reaching decisions, rather than
advancing the interests of a particular constituency.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee must satisfy itself that the
candidate will be able to devotesufficient time and energy to the performance
of his or her duties as a Director.

Fit and Proper Criteria

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall undertake a process of Due
Diligence based on the criteria of qualifications, technical expertise, track record,
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4.6

integrity etc. The basic objective of ascertaining the fit and proper criteria shall be
to put in place an internal supervisory process on a continuing basis and to
determine the suitability of the person for appointment / continuing to hold
appointment as a Director on the Board of the Company. The Candidate at the
time of appointment and at the time of the renewal of Directorship shall fill in such
form as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to enable the
Committee to undertake such exercise of ensuring the ‘Fit and Proper Criteria’.

The Committee shall undertake such Due Diligence exercise at the time of
appointment as well as the time of renewal of the Directorships of the incumbent.
The indicative criteria for determining the ‘fit and proper’ criteria forms part of
the Policy.

Criteria For Independence — For Directors to be appointed as
Independent Director on Board of the Company

An independent director in relation to a company, means a director other than a
managing director or a whole-time director or a nominee director,—

(a) who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses
relevant expertise and experience;

(b) (i) who is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or
associate company;
(if) who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company;

(c) who has or had no pecuniary relationship with the. company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, during the
two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year;

(d) none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with
the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters,
or directors, amounting to two per cent. or more of its gross turnover or total
income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed,
whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or
during the current financial year;

(e) who, neither himself nor any of his relatives—

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has
been employee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate
company in any of the three financial years immediately preceding the
financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed;

(i) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three
financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is
proposed to be appointed, of—
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(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of
the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or
(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the
company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to
ten per cent. or more of the gross turnover of such firm;
(iii) holds together with his relatives two per cent. or more of the total voting
power of the company; or
(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any nonprofit
organisation that receives twenty-five per cent. or more of its receipts
from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary
or associate company or that holds two per cent. or more of the total
voting power of the company; or

(f) who possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "nominee. director” means a
director nominated by any financial institution in pursuance of the provisions
of any law for the time being in force, or of any agreement, or appointed by
any Government, or any other person to represent its interests.

5. Remuneration Policy

1.

1.

I1.

Board Level Remuneration Structure

For Executive Directors (MD and Whole-Time Director) - The remuneration

will be paid as approved from time to time subject to the approval of the Board and
Shareholders, as the case may be, and as per the applicable provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 and under any other Act/ Rules/ Regulations for the time being in force.

In case of Non-Executive / Independent Directors

(i) Sitting Fees — The Non-Executive/Independent Directors shall be paid sitting

fees for attending each meeting of the Board and various Committee/s of Directors.

The Sitting Fees may be determined/revised by the Board of Directors from time to .
time subject to the overall limits as prescribed under the applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Presently, Sitting Fees for the Non-Executive/Independent Director is Rs. 12,000/~

for attending each Meeting of the Board and Rs. 7,500/~ for attending each Meeting
of various Committee/s of Directors.

In case of Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees -
1. The pay structure of all the regular employees shall be as per the pay scale

which was made effective w.e.f. November 1, 2013 including any amendment
thereto from time to time. In all other cases, all the regular employees will be
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governed by IFCI Factors Ltd. Staff Regulation Policy, as amended from time to
time.

2. The pay structure of employees on contracts/retainership shall be decided by the
Board of Directors from time to time. For this, reference may be drawn from the
Reserve Bank of India pay scale (starting of the scales).

The Performance Linked Incentives both for the Board and Senior Management /

Other employees shall be as per the Board Approved scheme on recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

6. Monitoring and Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the performance of the
Directors and the overall Board broadly on the basis of below mentioned criteria:

7l

Whether the Directors / Board have acted in accordance with the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company.

The Committee shall assemble all information regarding a candidate's background and
qualifications to determine if the candidate possesses or satisfies the minimum skills and
qualifications that a director must possess.

The Committee shall evaluate a candidate's mix of skills and qualifications and
determine the contribution the candidate could be expected to make to the overall
functioning of the Board.

The Committee shall give due consideration to the overall Board balance of diversity of
perspectives, backgrounds and experiences.

With respect to current directors, the Committee shall consider past attendance at
meetings and assess the participation in and contributions to the activities of the Board.
Whether the Directors / Board have acted in good faith in order to promote the objects
of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in the best interests of
the Company, its employees, the shareholders, the Community and for the protection of
environment.

Whether the Director / Board has exercised their duties with due and reasonable care,
skill and diligence and whether the Director / Board have exercised independent
judgment.

Whether the Director / Board have involved in a situation in which he / they may have a
direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interest of the
Company.

The Committee shall recommend director to the Board based on its assessment of
overall suitability to serve on the Board in accordance with this Policy.

Board Diversity

¢ The Nomination and remuneration Committee shall ensure that the Board comprises
of Directors from diversified fields of knowledge and experience.
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e The Board should have Directors who can add professionalism and objectivity in the
decision making process.

o The overall Board should reflect representatives from areas like finance, law,

accountancy, economics, administration and other disciplines concerning the
operational interests of the Company at large. '

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

v Sudhir Garg Satbir Singh
Date :30.07.2016 ' Director Manading Director
Place : New Delhi Din: 06777363 DIN: 06887978

Address : 10th Floor, IFCI Tower
61, Nehru Place,
New Delhi 110019
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Bansal, CFO, Mr.Ankur
Agarwal, CS, Mr.Samir
Raheja CS & Mr.Manish
Jain, CFO

Personnel

the Board

Board

IFCI Limited Other Expenses (R&M, | Normal Normal business Normal business N.A N.A N.A
Telephone, Oracle, Ucmjmmm transaction transaction
RFA(Delhi) etc. transaction
Remuneration of Mr. Lalit Key Managerial Appointed by Acting as KMPs Appointed by the N.A N.A N.A

Date: 30.07.2016
Place : New Delhi

Address : 10th Floor, [FCI Tower

61, Nehru Place,
New Delhi 110019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sudhir Garg

Director

Din: 06777363

Satbir Singh

Managing Director

DIN : 06887978
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Policy on Related Party Transactions

Introduction

This Policy deals with the Related Party Transactions (RPTs) in terms of RBI guidelines,
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws prescribing for formulation of RPT Policy.

Definitions

“Associate Company”, in relation to another company, means a company in which that
other company has significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company of the
company having such influence and includes a Joint Venture company.

Explanation- For the purpose of this clause, “significant influence” means control of at least
20% of total share capital, or of business decisions under an agreement.

“"Arm’s length transaction” means transaction between two related parties that is
conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest.

“Audit Committee” or "Committee” means “Audit Committee” constituted by the Board
of Directors of the company, from time to time, under provisions of the Companies Act 2013
and RBI Guidelines.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of IFCI Factors, as
constituted from time to time.

“Company” means IFCI Factors.

“Government Company” means any company in which not less than fifty one percent of
the paid-up share capital is held by the Central Government, or by any State Government or
Governments, or partly by the Central Government and partly by one or more State
Governments, and includes a company which is subsidiary company of such a Government
Company .

“Independent Director” means a director of the Company, as appointed in terms of
Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013.

“Key Managerial Personnel” in relation to a company, means-
() Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
() Company Secretary;
(i) Whole-time Director;
(iv)  Chief Financial Officer; and
) Such other officer of the Company as may be prescribed by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) from time to time.

“Policy” means Policy on Related Party Transactions
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(A) “Related Party” as per Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder

i. a director or his relative;

ii. a key managerial personnel or his relative;

ili. a firm, in which director, manager or his relative is a partner;

iv. a private company in which a director or manager or his relative is a member or
director; :

v. a public company in which a director or manager is a director and holds along with
his relatives, more than 2% of its paid-up share capital;

vi. any body corporate whose Board of Directors, managing director or manager is
accustomed to act in accordance with the advice, directions or instructions of a
director or manager;

vil. any person on whose advice, directions or instructions a director manager is
accustomed to act:

Provided that nothing in sub-clauses (vi) and (vii) shall apply to the advice, directions
or instructions given in a professional capacity.

viil. any company which is :

(a) a holding, subsidiary or an associate company of such company; or
(b) a subsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary;

ix. A director (other than Independent Director) or key managerial personnel of the
holding company or his relative with reference to a company, shall be deemed to be
a related party]

(B) _As per the provisions of Accounting Standard:

Related Party / Parties are considered to be related if at any time during the reporting
period one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and/or operating decisions.

“Relative” with reference to any person, means anyone who is related to another, if-
(i) They are members of a Hindu Undivided Family;

(if) They are husband and wife; or
(i) One person is related to the other in such manner as may be prescribed

List of relatives as per Rule 4 of Companies (Specification of Definition Details) Rules, 2014

A person shall be deemed to be relative of another, if he or she is related to another in the
following manner, namely:-

1. Father including ‘Step-Father’

2. Mother including ‘Step-Mother’
3. Son including ‘Step-Son’, Son’s wife,

26




4. Daughter including ‘Daughter’s husband”
5. Brother including ‘Step-Brother’
6. Sister including ‘Step-Sister’

“Related Party Transactions” A Related Party Transaction is transfer of resources,
services or obligations between the Company and a related party, regardless of whether a
price is charged.

“Control” as per Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder and Accounting Standard:

(A) With reference to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Control shall include the right to appoint majority of the Directors or to control the
management or policy decisions exercisable by a person or persons acting individually or in
concert, directly or indirectly, including by virtue of their shareholding or management rights
or shareholders” agreement or voting agreements or in any other manner.

(B) With reference to the provisions of Accounting Standard

Control has been defined as — (a) ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than one half of
the voting power of an enterprise, or

(b) Control of the composition of the Board of Directors in the case of a Company or of the
composition of the corresponding governing body in case of any other enterprise, or

(c) a substantial interest in voting and the power to direct, by statue or agreement, the
financial and/or operating policies of the enterprise.

“Joint Ventures” — A contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control.

Dealing with Related Party Transactions

A. Approvals

I. Approval by Audit Committee

All Related Party Transactions (including any subsequent modifications thereof)
shall require approval of the Audit Committee of Directors. However, the Audit
Committee of Directors may grant omnibus approval for the RPTs proposed to be
entered into by the Company subject to the following conditions:

i) The Audit Committee shall, after obtalning approval of the Board of Directors,
specify the criteria for making the omnibus approval.

ii) The Audit Committee shall consider the following factors while specifying the
criteria for making omnibus approval, namely: - (a) repetitiveness of the
transactions (in past or in future); (b) justification for the need of omnibus
approval.
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a. The Audit Committee may grant the omnibus approval in line with the policy
on Related Party Transactions of the Company.

b.  The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such omnibus approval
and that such approval is in the interest of Company.

c.  Such omnibus approval shall specify:

i The name(s) of the Related Party, nature of transaction, period of
transaction, maximum amount of transaction that can be entered
into.

il. The indicative base price/current contracted price and the formula for
variation in the price if any, and

iii. Such other conditions as Audit Committee may deem fit.

d. Audit Committee shall review, on a quarterly basis, the details of ‘RPTs
entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval given.

e.-  Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one year
and shall require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year. '

f.  Where the need for RPT cannot be foreseen and aforesaid details are not
available, audit committee may make omnibus approval for such transactions
subject to their value not exceeding rupees one crore per transaction.

In the event of inadvertent omission to seek the approval of the Related Party
Transaction in accordance with the Policy, the matter shall be reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

11. Approval by Board of Directors

Except with the consent of the Board of Directors given by a resolution at a
meeting of the board, the Company shall not enter into any contract or
arrangement with a related party with respect to : '

i Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

ii. Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

iii. Leasing of property of any kind;

iv. Availing or rendering of any services;

V. Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services

or property;

Vi, Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the
company, its subsidiary company or associate company; and Related Party
Transactions.

Explanation-

the expression “office or place of profit” means any office or place-
Where such office or place of profit is held by a director, if the director holding it
receives from the Company anything by way of remuneration over and above the
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remuneration to which he is entitled as director, by way of salary, fee, commission,
perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or otherwise;

Where such office or place is held by an individual other than a director or by any
firm, private company or other body corporate, if the individual, firm, private
company or body corporate holding it receives from the Company anything by way
of remuneration, salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any rent-free
accommodation, or otherwise;

vil. Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the
company: :

Provided that nothing of the above shall apply to any transactions entered into by

the Company in its ordinary course of business other than the transactions which

are not on an arm'’s length basis.

(Ordinary Course of Business shall include those business which forms part of the
Main Object of the Memorandum of Association of the Company)

III.  Approval by Shareholders

1. All the transactions which are in excess of the limits specified in Section 188 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and which are not in the ordinary course of business

& arm’s length basis shall require approval of shareholders by way of
Resolution,

However, transactions between two Government Companies are exempted
from the aforesaid shareholders approval required under point no.1 above,

2. No Member of the Company shall vote on such Resolution to approve any
contract or arrangement which may be entered into by the Company, if such
member is a related party. The Related Party here refers to such Party as may
be Related Party in the context of the contract or arrangement for which the
approval is required.

However, the following are exempted from compliance of point no.2 above :

0 Transactions between two Government Companies ; and :

(i) Transactions between a holding company and its wholly owned
subsidiary company whose accounts are consolidated with such holding
company and placed before the shareholders at the general meeting for
approval.
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Identification of Potential Related Party Transactions

Identification of Potential Related Party Transactions

i Each director and Key Managerial Personnel shall be responsible for giving
notice to the Company about any potential RPTs, he/she may be interested.

Pre-requisites for entering into Potential Related Party Transactions
A. Audit Committee / Board Level Pre-requisites

The Company shall enter into any contract or arrangement with a related party
subject to the following conditions, namely:-

The agenda of the Board/ Audit Committee Meeting, as the case may be, at which
the resolution is proposed to be moved shall disclose-

) The name of the related party and nature of relationship;
ii) The nature, duration of the contract and particulars of the contract or
arrangement; .

i) The material terms of the contract or arrangement including the value, if
any;

iv) Any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, if any;

V) The manner of determining the pricing and commercial terms, both included
as part of contract and not considered as part of the contract;

vi) Whether all factors relevant to the contract have been considered, if not,
the details of factors not considered with the rationale for not considering
those factors; and :

vii)  And other information relevant or important for the Board to take a decision
on the proposed transaction.

Where any director is interested in any contract or arrangement with a related
party, such director shall not be present at the meeting during discussions on the
subject matter of the resolution relating to such contract or arrangement,

B. Shareholders’ Level Pre-requisites

For the approval of shareholders, a notice calling the General Meeting will be sent
along with the explanatory statement to the Shareholders.

The Explanatory Statement to be annexed to the notice of a General Meeting
convened for approval of the RPTs shall contain the following particulars, namely:-

Name of the Related party;
Name of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel who is related, if any;
Nature of relationship;
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Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or
arrangement;

Any other information relevant or important for the members to take a decision on
the proposed resolution;

Transactions not previously approved

In the event the Company becomes aware of an RPT that has not been approved or ratified
under this Policy, the transaction shall be placed as promptly as practicable before the Audit
Committee or Board or the Shareholders as may be required in accordance with this Policy
for review and ratification.

The Audit Committee or the Board shall consider all relevant facts and circumstances
regarding such transaction and shall evaluate all options available to the Company, including
but not limited to ratification, revision, or termination of such transaction, and the Company
shall take such action as the Audit Committee / the Board deems appropriate under the
circumstances.

Disclosure Requirements

A. Disclosure by Board of Directors

Every Director shall at the first Meeting of the Board in which he participates as a
Director and thereafter at the first Meeting of the Board in every Financial Year or
wherever there is any change in the disclosures already made, then at the first
Board Meeting held after such change, disclose his concern or interest in any
company or companies or bodies corporate, firm, or other association of individuals
which shall include the shareholding.

B. Disclosure on Website

The Company shall disclose the policy on Related Party Transactions on its website
and a web-link shall be provided in the Annual Report.

C. Disclosure in Board’s Report

Every contract or arrangement entered into by the Company under Section 188(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring Board’s and Company’s subsequent approval
by way of Resolution shall be referred to in the Board’s Report to the shareholders
along with the justification for entering into such contract or arrangement.

Non-approval or Related Party Transactions/Violation of Provision

related to Related Party Transactions

i Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a director or a KMP,
without obtaining the consent of the Board or approval by a resolution in the
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general meeting as required and if it is not ratified by the Board or, as the case
may be, by the shareholders at a meeting within three months from the date on
which such contract or arrangement shall be voidable at the option of the Audit
Committee / Board.

ii. Without prejudice to anything in the above para, it shall be open to the
Company to proceed against a director or a KMP any other employee who had
entered into such contract or arrangement in contravention of the provisions of this
section for recovery of any loss sustained by it as a result of such contract or
arrangement.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sudhir Garg Satbir Singh

Date: 30.07.2016 Director Managing Director
Place : New Delhi Din: 06777363 DIN : 06887978

Address : 10th Floor, IFCI Tower
61, Nehru Place,
New Delhi 110019

i
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ANNEXURE-III
FORM MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2016

[Puirsuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

SI. Particulars Details
No.
1. CIN U74899DL1995G0I1074649
2. Registration Date 14 December, 1995
3. Name of the Company IFCI Factors Limited
4 Category / Sub-Category of the | Company limited by Shares/Government
Company Company

5. Address of the Registered office and | 10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New
contact details Delhi — 110019. Tel: 91 11 4164 2840

Fax: +91-11-4652 1435-36

email: samir@ifcifactors.com

o

Whether listed company Yes / No Yes (Debentures of the Company are listed)

7. Name, Address and Contact details of | M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited,

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg,
Bhandup (West), Mumbai 400078, is providing
electronoic connectivity for the securities of the
Company.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

S8I. | Name and description of main | NIC code of the product/ | % to total turnover
No | products / services service of the Company

1. | Factoring 64990 81%

2. | Corporate Loans 64920 19%
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Name and | CIN Holding/ % of Applicable

S.No | address Subsidiary/ shares | Section
of the Associate Held
company

1. IFCI limited | L74899DL1993G0I1053677 Holding 99.89% | 2(46) of the

Company Companies
Act, 2013

1v. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total

equity) ’ :

I. Category-wise shareholding S
Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholde the year : year Change
rs during

the
year
Demat |Physical Total % of | Demat |Physical| Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A.Promoter - - - - - - - -
s
(1)Indian - - - - - - - -
a)Individual/H 8 - 8 0.00 8 8 0.00 -
UF
b)Central - - - - - - - -
Govt.,
¢)State Govt. - - - - - - - -
d)Bodies - - - - - - - -
Corporate .
e)Bank/FI 7,91,54,692 7,91,54,692 99.74 | 7,91,54,692 7,91,54,692 99.74 -
f) Any other - -
SUB 7,91,54,700 7,91,54,700 99.74 | 7,91,54,700 7,91,54,700 99.74 -
TOTAL:(A)
(1)
(2)Foreign
a)NRIs- - - - - - - - -
Individuals
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b)Other
Individuals

¢)Bodies
Corporate

d)Banks/FI

e)Any other

SUB
TOTAL:(A)

(2)

Total
Shareholdi
ng of
Promoter
(A)=
(A)(1)+(A)
(2)

7,91,54,700

7,91,54,700

99.74

7,91,54,700

7,91,54,700

99.74

B.PUBLIC
SHAREHOLD
ING

(DInstitution
S

a)Mutual
Funds

b)Banks/FI

¢)Central
Govt.

d)State Govt.

e)Venture
Capital
Funds

f)Insurance
Companies

g)FIls

h)Foreign
Venture
Capital
Funds

i)Other
Specify

SUB TOTAL
(B) (1)

(2)Non
Institutions

a)Bodies
Corporate

90,000

90,000

0.11

90,000

90,000

0.11

i)Indian

ii)Overseas
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b)Individuals

i)Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1
Lakh

- 80,000

80,000

0.10

- 80,000

80,000

0.10

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs. 1 Lakh

33,000 -

33,000

0.04

33,000 -

33,000

0.04

¢)Others
(specify)

SUB TOTAL
(B) (2):

33,000 1,70,000

2,03,000

0.25

33,000

1,70,000

2,03,000

0.25

Total Public
Shareholdi

ng
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

33,000 1,70,000

2,03,000

0.25

33,000

1,70,000

2,03,000

0.25

C. Shares
held by
Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

7,91,87,700 |1,70,000

7,93,57,700

100

7,91,87,700

1,70,000

7,93,57,700

100

11,

Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholder’s

Name -

year

Shareholding at the beginning of the

Shareholding at the end of the year

No.
Shares

of

% of total
Shares of
the
Company

%of  Shares
Pledged/
encumbered
to total shares

No. of Shares

% of total
Shares of
the
company

%of
Pledged/
encumbered

to total shares

Shares

%
change
in share
holding
during
the year

IFCI Limited*

7,91,54,700

99.74%

7,91,54,700

99.74%

Total

7,91,54,700

99.74%

7,91,54,700

99.74%

*Including 8 shares held by nominees of IFCI Ltd.
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I11. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding
No. the year during the year
No. of % of total shares No. of % of total
Shares of the company Shares shares of the
company
i. At the beginning of the year 7,91,54,700 99.74% No change
i Date wise Increase/Decrease - - No change
in Promoters Share Holding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment/
Transfer/bonus/sweat equity
etc) o
il At the end of the year 7,91,54,700 99.74% No change
IV. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
) Name of Shareholding at the Change in Shareholding at the
No. Shareholders beginning of the year as | shareholding during end of the year as on
B on 01.04.2015 the year 31.3.2016
No. of % of total No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of shares shares of
the company the company the
company
1. Puri Constructions 90000 0.11 Nil Nil 90000 0.11
| Pyt Lid. .
2. Mr. Brij Kapoor 33000 0.04 Nil Nil 33000 0.04
3. Mr. Sushant 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01
Chabra
4. Mr. Sanjay Kumar 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01
5. Mr, Vijay Roop 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01
Chand
6. Mr. Daljit Singh 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01
7. Mrs. Deep Kaur 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01
8. Mr. GP Singh 10000 0.01 Nil Nil 10000 0.01
9. Mr. Amit Vadhera 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01
10. | Mr. AK. Mehta 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01
11. | Mr. Bal Krishna 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01
Jaggi
12. | Mr. Rishi Talwar 5000 0.01 Nil Nil 5000 0.01
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V. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl. Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year
For Each of the Directors & | No. of shares % of total No.of shares | % of total
KMP shares of the shares of
company the
company
1. At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Date wise Increase/Decrease
in Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for . . e .
Increase/Decrease (e.g. NIl Nil i Nil
allotment/transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc.)
- Nil . Nil Nil Nil

At the end of the year

VI. Indebtedness:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment
(Amount in Rs.)
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans | Deposits Total
excluding Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year (01.04.2015)
i) Principal Amount 4,004,164,269 1,746,032,386 - 5,750,196,655
i) Interest due but - - - -
not paid
iii) Interest accrued but 85,190,172 75,747,939 - 160,938,111
not due
TOTAL (i+ii+iii) 4,08,93,54,441 1,82,17,80,325 - 5,911,134,766
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial
year
Addition 145,746,928 - - 145,746,928
Reduction - 496,032,390 - 496,032,390
Exchange Difference - - - -
Net Change 145,746,928 496,032,390 (350,285,462)
Indebtedness at the end
of the financial year
(31.03.2016) -
i) Principal Amount 4,135,542,679 1,250,000,000 : 5,385,542,679
fi) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not 99,558,690 75,747,935 - 175,306,625
due
TOTAL (i-+ii+iii) 4,235,101,369 1,325,747,935 - 5,560,849,304
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VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(Amount in Rs.)

Sr.
No

Particulars of Remuneration

*Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy

(Managing Director)

*Mr, Satbir Singh

(Managing Director)

Gross Salary

Salary as per provisions contained in

1(a) | Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 7,77,395

1961

1,44,4879

1(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-

tax Act, 1961

2,29,957

3,55,127

1(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

80,772

70,187

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

-as a % of profit

-others (specify)

Benefits

Others, please specify : Retirement

Total

10,88,123

18,70,193

*Mr, Bikash Kanti Roy ceased as Managing Director w.e.f August 10, 2015 and Mr.Satbir Singh was
appointed as Managing Director from the said date.

B. Remuneration to other directors:

(Amount in Rs.)

S No. Name of the Directors Fee for attending | Commission Total
| board/

committee

meetings
1, Mr. Shrawan Nigam 1,80,000 - 1,80,000
2. Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta 1,14,000 - 1,14,000
3. Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb 2,44,500 - 2,44,500
4. * Mr. Sudhir Garg 2,55,000 - 2,55,000
4. Mr. Rajib Sekhar Sahoo 39,000 - 39,000
5. Mrs. Bandana Mukhopadhyay 72,000 - 72,000

*Sitting fees is being paid to IFCI Ltd.
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD :
(Amount in Rs.)

Sr. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel ‘
No Remuneration Company Company Chief Financial | Chief
Secretary (CS) Secretary | Officer (CFO) Financial
(Mr. Ankur (CS) (Mr. Lalit Officer
Agarwal (Mr. Samir | Bansal upto) (CFO)
Upto July 16, Raheja -| January 27, (Mr. Manish |
2015) w.e.f. 2016) Jain w.e.f
July17, Feb 05,
2015) 2016)
1. | Gross Salary
1(a) | Salary as  per 1,87,620 5,46,907 9,42,585 2,20,039 |
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act,
1961
1(b) | Value of perquisites 87,471 87,211 2,59,682 33,805
u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961
1(c) | Profits in lieu of - - - -
salary under section
17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission
-as a % of profit - - - -
-others (specify) - - - -
5 Others, please - - - -
specify : Retirement
Benefits
Total 2,75,091 6,34,118 12,02,267 2,53,844

VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 30.07.2016
Place : New Delhi

Address : 10th Floor, IFCI Tower

61, Nehru Place,
New Delhi 110019

Sudhir Garg
Director
DIN: 06777363
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ANNEXURE-IV

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY - OVERVIEW

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board,
a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by
the Company, which has been approved by the Board. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the
Company’s website at the link: http://www.ifcifactors.com/investors.html..

In line with the CSR policy and in accardance of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company shall undertake the Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as defined under the
Schedule VII to the Act.

The main objectives of CSR Policy are:

(i)  To directly or indirectly take up programs that benefit the communities in and around its

workplace and results, over a period of time, in enhancing the quality of life and economic
. well-being of the local populace.

(i)  To generate through its CSR initiatives, a community goodwill for your Company and help
reinforce a positive & socially responsible image of your Company as a corporate entity and
as a good Corporate Citizen. _

(i) - Ensure commitment at all levels in the organization, to operate its business in an
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable manner, while recognizing the
interest of all its stakeholders.

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee is as under:

0] To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in
Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013;

(in) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to
in clause (i) above; and

(i)~ To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to
time.

‘Composition of CSR Committee

Members of the committee are:

Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb, Independent Director as Chairman
Mr. Sudhir Garg, Non-Independent Director as Member
Mr. Satbir Singh, Managing Director as Member

41



3. Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years
The Average Net Profit in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder for the immediately three preceding years is
Rs.16,24,67,417.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in Item 3 above):
Rs. 32,49,348

5. Details of CSR Activities/Projects undertaken during the year:
a. Total amount to be spent for the financial year:

Rs.95,24,260 ( inclUding Rs.62,74,912 for the Financial Year 2014-15)
b. Amount unspent, if any: Rs.95,24,260/-

c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year:

S. CSR project or | Sector in | Projects/ Amount Amount spent | Cumulative Amount spent:
No. activity, which Programmes outlay on the | expenditure
identified the (budget) | project/ . ) upto to the| Direct/
Projectis | 1. Local ~area/ |project or | programme reporting through
covered others Programme period implementing
2. Specify the [wise 1.Direct agency*®
state and district | (in Rs.) expenditure (in Rs.)
where  project/ on project or
Proggramme was programmes
undertaken
2.0verheads
(in Rs.)

In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net
profits of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall
provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Boards’ Report

Owing to continued losses and withdrawal of credit facility availed from Deutsche Bank during
the Financial Year 2015-16, which had a significant impact on the operations of the Company,
the Company could not spend any amount towards CSR expenditure. In compliance with the
CSR & Sustainability Guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprises the Company
has deferred the CSR expenditure of Rs.95,24,260 (Rs.32,49,348 for Financial Year 2015-16
and Rs.62,74,912 for the Financial Year 2014-15).
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Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies Rules (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, Mr. Satbir Singh, Managing Director and Mr. Ajoy Kumar
Deb, Chairman of CSR Committee, do confirm that the implementation and monitoring of
CSR policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

Date : 30.07.2016 Satbir Singh Ajoy Kumar Deb
Place : New Delhi Managing Director Chairman of the CSR Committee
DIN 06887978 DIN 02691119

Address : 10th Floor,
IFCI Tower

61, Nehru Place,
New Delhi 110019
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Poonam Jhuja &L Associates
Company Secretatics B-2/216,

Yamuna Vihar,

Dethi-110053

Tel: 98118-42946
Ji-mail-poonamahuja/@gmail.com

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2016
[Pursuant'to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

1FCY Factors Limited,
IFCI Tower, 10th Floor,
61, Nehru Place,

New Delhi 110 019, India.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by IFCI Factors Limited (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of IFCI Factors Limited’s books, papers, minute hooks, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year cnded on 318t March, 2016 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also thal the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by IFCI Factors Limited for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2016, according to
the provisions of:

().  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; The Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made there under.

(i).  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under.

(ii).  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thercunder o
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

(iv).  The following Regulations and Guidelines preseribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act') to the extent applicable:-

4. The Securities and BExchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

S
For POONAM AHUJA & ASSOCIATE
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(
(vi)
.
i,

b. The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 (effective from May 15, 2015);

¢. The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009. (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (IImployee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999. (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

¢. The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securitics) Regulations,
2008;

[~ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issuc and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not Applicahle to the
Company during the Audit Period);

g The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

I Listing Agreement for Debt Securities and the  Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (effective from
December 01, 2015); ’

j.  The Factoring Regulation Act, 2011;

k. All the relevant Circulars and Guidelines of Reserve Bank of India applicable to the Company
and other laws applicable to the Company

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;
Seeretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company secretaries of India (effective from

July 18, 2015 onwards).
Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited

During the period under review and as per the explanations and clarifications given to us and the
representations made by the management, the Company has gomplied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, ete. mentioned above.

W

¢ further report that:

(i), The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act,

For POONAM AHUJA & ASSO IATES
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(ii). Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent to Directors al least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the mieeting,

(ii).  Majority decisions are carried out with the unanimous consent, so therefore dissenting
members’ views are not required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

(w).  We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company,
“commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that on the basis of information received and record maintained by the company
during the audit period, the Company has issued and allotted 10,00,43,160 10% Compulsory
Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- cach aggregating to Rs.1,000,431,600.

FOR POONAM AHUJA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

For POOV%M AHUJA & ASSOCIATES

r)/‘“W r
Dr. (CS) POONAM AHUJA

FCS No, 4705 Prop.
C.P. No.: 6586

Date: 150 July, 2016

Place: New Delhi

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.



O

Poonam Ahuja L Associates
Company Secretaries

TFCI Factors Limited
Page 4 of 4

‘Annexure A’

To,

The Members,

IFCI Factors Limited
10t Floor, IFCI Tower,
61, Nehru Place,

New Delhi- 110019

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
‘responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have follpwed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to dbtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.. We believe that the
process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropnatenoss of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compllcmce of

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. 'I‘he Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards Is the responsibility of management.

FORPOONAM AHUJA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

For POONAM AHUJA & ASSOCIATES

NS
Dr. (CS) POONAM AHU]AF_,r
FCS No. 4705
C.P. No.: 6586

Date: 15t July, 2016
Place: New Delhi
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A use VI

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IFCI FACTORS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

2016.

The preparation of financial statements of IFCI Factors Limited for the year ended 31
March 2016 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
139(5) ofthe Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section
143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their
Audit Report dated April 29, 2016. '

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct
the supplementary audit of the financial statements of IFCI Factors Limited for the year ended 31
March 2016 under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on the behaflf of the
Compiroller & Auditor Generallof India

Principal Director of Commercial Audit
& Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-II,
New Delhi

Place: Delhi

7 Date: 31.05.2016
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of better transparency
and accountability in all facets of operations and all its interactions with its stakeholders including
shareholders, employees, bankers and the auditors. The Company constantly endeavors to achieve
standards of Corporate Governance in order to enhance the long term stakeholders’ value and
maintain good Corporate Governance. The Company has well established, transparent and fair
administrative set up to provide for professionalism and accountability.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Composition, Category and Attendance of the Board of Directors

As on March 31, 2016, the Board of the Company consisted of eight Directofs, out of whom five
are Independent Directors including one Woman Director, two Directors are Non-Executive
while one is Executive Director being the Managing Director.

The composition of the Board, number of Board Meetings held, attendance, number of
Directorship and Chairmanship/ Membership of Committees in other Companies in respect of

each Director as on March 31, 2016 is reproduced herein below:

Sl | Name of Category Attendance Particulars No. of Directorships/ Committee
No | Director Memberships/ Chairmanships
of other Companies
No. of Board Meetings At AGM Other Committee |Committee
during the tenure of held on directorships | Memberships |Chairmans
Director September hips
. 08, 2015
Held Attended
1, |Mr. Malay Non- 6 6 Yes 6 - -
Mukherjee Executive
Chairman
2. |Mr. Sudhir Garg | Non- 6 5 Yes 5 2 -
Executive
Director
3. |Mr. Shrawan Non- 6 5 No 1 - -
Nigam Executive-
Independent
Director
4. |Mr. Vinod Non- 6 2 No - - -
Kumar Gupta Executive-
Independent
Director
5. |Mr. Ajoy Kumar | Non- 6 6 Yes 3 1 -
Deb Executive-
Independent
Director
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6. |Mr. Rajib Non- 6 2 No 2 - -
Sekhar Sahoo Executive-
Independent
Director
7. [Mrs. Bandana Non- 6 6 Yes . - -
Mukhopadhyay | Executive-
Independent
‘Director :
8. |*Mr. Satbir Managing 4 4 . Yes - - -
Singh Director
9. |*Mr. Bikash Managing 2 2 N.A - - -
Kanit Roy Director

* Mr. Blkash Kanti Roy ceased to be Managing Director w.e.f. August 10, 2015 and Mr. Satbir Singh was appointed as
Managing Director from the said date.

Notes:

a. Number of Meetings represents the Meetings held during the period in which the Director - -
was member of the Board. '

b. The details of Committee include only the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Rélationship
Committee. : "

c. None of the Directors of the Company were members of more than ten committees or
acted as Chairperson of more than five committees across all the Companies in which they
were Directors. '

d. Number of other Directorship is exclusive of Companies under Section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Board met six times during the Financial Year 2015-2016 viz., on April 30, 2015, July 30 2015,
August 12, 2015, September 08, 2015, October 23, 2015 and February 05, 2016. The maximum
interval between any two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.

Brief resume of the Director seeking re-appointment

Mr. Sudhir Garg aged 63 Years is a Non-Executive and Non- Independent Director of the
Company. He is a Postgraduate in Commerce from Delhi University and holds CAIIB and
Industrial Finance Certificate (IFC) from Indian Institute of Bankers. He is seasoned banker
having experience of around 38 years in the banking sector. In 2012, he retired as the Chief
General Manager of State Bank of Hyderabad and has acted as the Branch Head of the Bank at
Ahmadabad, Chennai, New Delhi, DGM, Commercial Branch, Delhi zone and as the Controller of
a Region controlling 45 branches of the Bank. Besides, he also acted as the Controller of
Regional head & CEO-SBI, Johannesburg heading SBI, South Africa, and General Manager-
Business Head, Treasury & Credit, State Bank of Patiala. He is also on the Board of IFCI
Venture Capital Funds Limited, Stock Holding Corporation of India. Limited, Alok Industries
Limited, Vadinar Oil Terminal Limited, Essar Oil Limited and Raichur Power Corporation Limited.
He is a member of Audit Committee, Executive Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Recovery & NPA Management
Committee, Risk Management Committee of IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited. He is member
of Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
of Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited. He does not hold any securities in his own name
and no share or convertible instrument in the Company is held by him, either in his name or in
the name of any other person, on a beneficial basis.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are to examine the Financial Statements and the
auditors’ report thereon, to evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems,
to review and monitor the auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of audit
process, to approve or any subsequent modification of transactions with related parties, review
the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism, etc.

COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The Audit Committee met four
times during the Financial year 2015-16 at regular intervals on 30" April, 2015, 30" July, 2015,
23" October, 2015 and 5" February, 2016 and not more than four months lapsed between two
consecutive meetings. In addition the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors also attend the Audit
Committee meetings The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of Directors as on
March 31, 2016 is shown below:

Name/ category Position in Audit | No. of meetings during the tenure of

Committee member

Held Attended

Mr. Rajib Sekhar Sahoo Chairman 4 2
Independent Director
Mr. Shrawan Nigam Member 4 3
‘Independent Director
Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Member 4 2
Independent Director
Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb Member 4 4
Independent Director
Mr. Sudhir Garg Member 4 4
Non-Executive Director

3. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are to formulate the
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director, to
identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management etc.

COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. During the Financial Year 2015-16,
Four meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on April 23, 2015, July
17, 2015, August 06, 2015 and February 05, 2016. The composition of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and attendance of Directors as on March 31, 2016 is shown below:
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Name/ category Position in No. of meetings during the
Committee tenure of member

Held Attended
Mr. Vinod K. Gupta Chairman 4 3
Independent Director
Mr. Shrawan Nigam Member ' 4 . 2
Independent Director
Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb Member 4 4
Independent Director ,
Mr. Sudhir Garg Member 4 4
Non-Executive Director

Details of remuneration paid to Directors

The details of salary and sitting fees paid to the Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2016

are as under; (Amount in Rs.) -
SI. Name Salary Perquisite | Profitin | Sitting Total
No. lieu of Fees
Salary

1. |Mr. Malay Mukherjee - - - - -
Non-Executive Chairman

2. |*Mr. Sudhir Garg - - - 255,000 | 255,000
Non-Executive Director ,

3. |Mr. Shrawan Nigam - - - 180,000 | 180,000
Non-Executive- Independent

___|Birector '

4. |Mr, Vinod Kumar Gupta - - - 114,000 | 114,000
Non-Executive- Independent
Director

5. |Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb ‘ - - - 244,500 | 244,500

Non-Executive- Independent '
Director '

6. |Mr. Rajib Sekhar Sahoo - - - 39,000 39,000
Non-Executive- Independent
Director

7. |Mrs. Bandana : - - - 72,000 72,000
Mukhopadhyay
Non-Executive- Independent
Director

8. [**Mr. Sathir Singh 14,44,879 | 3,55,127 | 70,187 - 18,70,193
Managing Director v

9. [**Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy 7,77,395 | 2,29,956 | 80,772 - 10,88,123

*Sitting fees is being paid to IFCI Ltd.
**Mr, Bikash Kanti Roy ceased to be Managing Director w.e.f. August 10, 2015 and Mr. Satbir Singh was
appointed as Managing Director from the said date.
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4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are to formulate and
recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, to recommend the amount of
expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred in Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
and to monitor Corporate Social Responsibility Policy etc.

COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. During the Financial Year 2015-16,
the CSR Committee of Directors met once on February 05, 2016. The composition of the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and attendance of Directors as on March 31, 2016 is
shown below:

Sl. No. Name of Director Category No. of meetings during the
tenure of member
Held Attended
1. Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb Chairman 1 1
Independent Director ’
2. Mr. Sudhir Garg Member 1 1
Non-Executive Director
3. ‘Mr, Satbir Singh Member 1 1
Managing Director

5. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of Risk Management Committee are to identify and monitoring key risk
areas, devise the policy and strategy for integrated risk management, to critically assess the
Company’s business strategies and plans from a risk perspective, manage risks to which the
Company is exposed, including credit, market, operational and reputational risks, etc. During
the Financial Year 2015-16, the Risk Management Committee met only once on April 23, 2015.
The composition of the Risk Management Committee and attendance of Directors as on March
31, 2016 is shown below:

Name/ category Position in No. of meetings during the
Commiittee tenure of member

Held Attended
Mr. Vinod K. Gupta Chairman 1 1
Independent Director
Mr, Shrawan Nigam Member 1 0
Independent Director
Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb Member 1 1
Independent Director
*Mr, Satbir Singh Member - -
Managing Director
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*Mr. Bikash Roy Member 1 1

Managing Director
*Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased to be the member w.e.f August 10, 2015 and Mr.Satbir Singh was inducted
as member from the said date.

6. COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of Committee of Directors are to sanction financial assistance by way of
factoring, advance against future receivables, corporate loans, working capital,
settlement/settlement/restructuring of dues as per the Credit Policy of the Company, to borrow
moneis, create charge on the assets and to allot the securities etc.

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The Committee of Directors met
thirteen times during the Financial Year 2015-16 on April 23, 2015, May 19, 2015, July 17,
2015, August 6, 2015, August 21, 2015, September 16, 2015, September 24, 2015, September
29, 2015, October 1, 2015, October 23, 2015, December 04, 2015, March 02, 2016, March 23,
2016. The composition of the Committee of Director and attendance of Directors as on March
31, 2016 is shown below:

Name/ category Position in No. of meetings during the tenure of
Committee of member ‘
Directors Held Attended
Mr. Shrawan Nigam Chairman 13 8
Independent Director ‘
Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Member 13 6
Independent Director
Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb Member 13 9
Independent Director :
Mr. Sudhir Garg Member 13 13
Independent Director
*Mr. Satbir Singh Member 9 9
Managing Director
*Mr. Bikash Roy Member 4 4
Managing Director

*Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased to be the member w.e.f August 10, 2015 and Mr.Satbir Singh was inducted
as member from the said date, ‘

7. RECOVERY COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of Recovery Committee are to oversee the NPA recovery. The Chairman
of the Committee is a Non-Executive Director. The Committee met four times during the
Financial Year 2015-16 at regular intervals on April 30, 2015, July 30, 2015, October 23, 2015
and February 05, 2016. The composition of the Recovery Committee and attendance of
Directors as on March 31, 2016 is shown below:
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Name/ category Position in No. of meetings during the tenure of
Committee of member
Directors Held Attended
Mr. Malay Mukherjee Chairman 4 0
Mr. Shrawan Nigam Member 4 3
Independent Director
Mr. Ajoy Kumar Deb Member 4 4
Independent Director
Mr. Sudhir Garg Member 4 4
Independent Director
*Mr. Satbir Singh Member 2 2
Managing Director
*Mr. Bikash Roy Member 2 2
Managing Director

*Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy ceased to be the member w.e.f August 10, 2015 and Mr.Satbir Singh was inducted
as member from the said date. ‘

8. GENERAL BODY MEETING

Financial Year | Date & time of AGM Venue of the AGM
2014-15 08" September, 2015/ IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-
11.00A.M 110019
2013-14 10" September, 2014/ IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-
: 11.00 A.M. 110019
2012-13 30" September, 2013/ IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-
11.00 A.M. 110019

Following Special Resolutions were passed at the above AGMs:

AGM Date Particulars of Special Resolutions

08" September, 2015 | Approval/ Ratification of Appointment and remuneration paid to Mr.
Bikash Kanti Roy as Managing Director

Appointment and Remuneration of Mr. Satbir Singh as Managing |
Director

Offer and issue of Preference Shares on Right Basis

10" September, 2014 | Sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or substantially whole
of the undertaking of the Company

Increasing the borrowing powers of the Company exceeding paid up
capital & free reserves

Invitation to subscribe to securities by way of private placement
30" September, 2013 | Scrapping of Employees Stock Option Scheme
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9. DISCLOSURES

(M

(i)

(ill)

(iv)
(V)

The Company did not enter into transactions with the related parties that may
potentially conflict with the interests of the Company at large during the year under
review. Further, all the related party transactions were in the ordinary course of
business and arm length price & have been disclosed in note no.33 of the Notes to
Accounts of the Balance Sheet for the year ended March 31, 2016.

There has been no non-compliance by the Company nor any penalties imposed on the
Company by any authorities.

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy duly approved by the Board, which has been
circulated to all the employees of the Company and also placed on the website of the
Company www.ifcifactors.com. Further, it'is afF rmed that no personnel has been denied
access to the Audit Committee. -

During the year, no expenses which are of personal nature have been incurred for the
Board of Directors and top management.

Administrative and Office Expenses during the year is 10.46% of the total expenses as
against 7.79% for the last year. Increase in administrative expenses is mainly on
account of increase in travelling expenses, Legal and Professional expenses, rent and
repair & maintenance expenses etc. Further, the Financial Expenses are 81.74% of the
total expenses as against 86.09% for the last year.

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Annual Report and other statutory information are being sent to shareholders.

The financial results of the Company are generally published in Business Standard / Financial
Express newspaper.

11. TRAINING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company furnishes a set of documents to the directors and informs them about the
important data regarding recent developments about the performance of the Company, industry
scenario & regulatory changes.

12.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A separate section on Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this report.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors have laid down a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all Board
members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Code of Conduct has also
been posted on the website of the Company viz. www.ifcifactors.com The members of the
Board and Senior Management Personnel have on 31st March, 2016 affirmed compliance with
the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. A declaration to this effect, duly signed by the
Managing Director is annexed and forms part of this Report

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

I hereby confirm that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics framed for Directors and Senior Management,
as approved by the Board, for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

Place : New Delhi ~ Satbir Singh
Date : 30.07.2016 Managing Director
: : DIN : 06887978
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Poonam Ahuja l Associates
Company Secretaries
B"2/216)

Yamuna Vihat,

Delhi-110053

Tel: 98118-42946
E-mall-poonamahuja7@gmail.com

TO THE MEMBERS OF IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by IFC| Factors Ltd,
(“Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2016, as stipulated in Guidelines on Corporate
Governance by Department of Public Enterprises.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Is the responsibility of the Management, Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementatlion thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliances of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It Is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
herein above. '

We further state that such compliance is nefther an assurance as to ‘the future viability of the
Company nhor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

FOR POONAM AHUJA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

A
Qq\ﬁw d
f"/
. /l'/
/

Dr. (CSYPOONAM AHUJA
FCSNo. 4705
C. P, No.: 6586

Date: 15t July, 2016
Place: New Delhi

n
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMY OVERVIEW

The global economy experienced challenging conditions in fiscal 2016, with weak growth and
divergent monetary policies in advanced economies, slowdown in China and significant decline
in commodity prices. The Indian economy continued to make progress during the year, with
improvement in key macroeconomic parameters and focused government initiatives to drive
sustainable growth. However, the corporate sector continued to experience challenges given
the prolonged slowdown in growth in eatlier years and the global environment. Credit growth in
the banking sector was moderate, with robust retail loan demand being offset by muted
demand from the corporate sector. While retail asset quality was healthy and stable, the
challenges facing the corporate sector impacted the asset quality metrics and profitability of
banks. Other segments of financial services, like insurance and mutual funds, witnessed healthy
- growth.

The asset quality of the Indian banking industry came under severe pressure during the year
due to broader macroeconomic factors as well as issues specific to certain sectors in the
economy. The banking industry on a collective basis saw a sharp spike in non-performing assets
as also flexible structuring of loans under the RBI framework.

The operating environment for the Indian corporate sector continued to remain challenging in
view of the subdued global scenario, gradual nature of domestic economic recovery, continued
weak corporate investment activity, delays and shortfalls in cash flow generation from
investments and high leverage. The decline in commodity prices had an impact on borrowers in
commodity linked sectors such as iron and steel. These conditions led to increasing levels of
non-performing loans for the Indian Banking sector.

Industry Structure and Developments

The factoring business in India, has been a challenge and is still evolving, grappling with
multiple issues, most notable being the alarming rise in the volume of stressed assets. While
globally, it remains a widely acceptable proposition within the ambits of transaction banking; in
India the business has witnessed several stumbling blocks during its course so far. Though the
Indian government has made efforts to provide a facilitating regulatory environment for
factoring business to develop, the desired effects still seems to be a far cry.

As per FCI, the Global turnover of factored debt i.e. the value of sales invoices factored /funded
in 2013 was Euro 2.2 Trillion. One would feel that a large country like India would have a
significant share of this. Unfortunately that has not been the case as factoring business over the
last decade or so has failed to take off in India. As per reported data, India’s factoring turnover
in 2013 was Euro 5240 Million i.e. 0.23 % share. As compared with China in many fields, India
was way behind China’s turnover of Euro 378,128 Million i.e. China’s turnover was 72 times
more!! Even Taiwan and Singapore are way ahead. Absence of legal framework regulating the
factoring business in India for a long time has been a major factor in the low offtake.

As per FCI, Central Bankers across the world have noticed the growing trend and have
appreciated the Factoring Product as safe and secure means of financing open account trade.
Indeed, Governments are increasingly noticing the important role played by Factors in financing
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SMEs, which are the engines of growth for most economies across the globe. In India, MSME’s
contribute nearly 8% of the country’s GDP, 45% of the manufacturing output and 8% of the
exports.

As on date, most of the factoring business in India is being done through NBFC's, viz., IFCI
Factors Ltd, Canbank Factors, SBI Global Factors Ltd, and India Factoring. There are a few
banks, mostly MNC's, which are offering factoring services on a selective basis.

It was generally felt that absence of Factoring Law was one of the major impediments in the
growth of factoring business of the country including the heavy stamp duty over assignment
deed, ambiguity in the legal rights of Factors in respect of receivables etc.
Government of India enacted the Factoring Act, 2011 to bring in the much needed legal
framework for the factoring business in the country. Though the enactment of the Factoring
Regulation Act has potentially removed all the major impediments that the factoring sector
faced in the country, nevertheless, the sector has few other items on its wish list, the primary
among which are introduction of credit insurance in the factoring business and extending the
scope of SARFAESI Act to cover NBFCs for speedy enforcement of security interest.

As mentioned, most of the factors presently operating in India are NBFC's. The inherent
problems pertaining to these NBFC's are non-availability of owned funds, high cost short term
borrowings, higher interest rates etc. Another major drawback to the factoring business is the
non-availability of debt recovery platforms to NBFC's, such as debt recovery tribunals and the
coverage under SARFESI act. Owing to the above factors, coupled with the unsecured nature of
factoring business, risk factors are high as is evident from the increase in stressed accounts.
However, the risk factor is minimized in export factoring transactions, which are necessarily
backed by credit insurance. Further, factoring companies need to reinvent and innovate quickly
if they have to survive and thrive in the fast changing landscape. There is no dearth of business
potential but they will need to adapt to the legal, regulatory and competitive environment as
prevalent in the country.

Operational Performance

Amidst the challenging macroeconomic environment, your company witnessed an increase in its
Funds In Use (FIU) and marginal improvements in terms of overall profitability vis-a-vis its last
year's performance. It was on account of few accounts turning into Non Performing Assets,
most of which in the last quarter, which led to the Company incurring losses during the current
financial year. During the year, your Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 1,909 crore (a decline
of 9% Y-O-Y) and a gross income of Rs. 90.93 crore. Further, your Company incurred a loss
before tax of Rs. 55.56 Crore and a loss after tax of Rs. 43.67 crore.

The major financial parameters for the financial year ended 31.03.2016 vis-3-vis the previous
two financial year are tabulated below:
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(Rs. in Crore)

Parameters

Year ended | Year ended

31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015
Turnover 1909 2,094
Funds in Use
Factoring Business 682 689
Other Business 212 131
Total Funds in use 894 820
Total Income 90.93 105.65
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (55.56) (88.15)
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (43.67) (59.56)

Segment wise / Product —wise Performance

The Company has extended both factoring and non-factoring facilities to its clients. The product

wise exposure of the Company as on March 31, 2016 is as under:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount
(Rs. In crore)
A. Factoring
1. Domestic Sales Bill Factoring 548.71
2. Export Sales Bill Factoring 26.78
3. Advance Against Future Receivables 53.91
4, Purchase Bill Factoring 52.15
Total (A) 681.55
B. Non Factoring
Corporate Loan 212.21
Total (B) 212.21
Total (A+B) 893.76

The Company has extended facilities across industry segment. Industry wise exposure of the

Company as on 31.03.2016 is as under:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount
(Rs. crore)
1. Small Scale Industries 21.34
2. Medium & Large Industries 49.94
3. Construction 72.85
4. Advance to Capital Market 33.89
5. Retail Trade 7.25
6. Commercial Real Estate 107.30
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7. Infrastructure 115.99
8. Transport Operators 19.36
9. Consumer Durables 0.00
10. | Others 465.84
Total , 893.76
Opportunities

¢ The Company is only operating in working capital space for the entire IFCI Group.

e RBI has been indicating a favorable intent for factoring Industry through various circulars.
To name a few RBI has prescribed Factoring to Non factoring product ratio of 50:50 and
Export Factoring.

e The Company has joined Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for Factoring, having a corpus of
Rs. 500 crore, introduced by Ministry of Finance, to facmtate factormg transactlons for

-~ MSMEs.

e There is a funding gap in SME sectors as banks have not been able to meet the fundmg
needs to this sector.

Threats

e The Company does not have DRT access and SARFASI Rights.

e NBFC Factor have to classify an asset as NPA where the invoices remain unpaid for a period
more than 120 days and this would be progressively reduced to 90 days from the FY 2017-
18.

e Provisioning requirement for the impaired assets to the extent of 100% is required to be
made within 16 months due to unsecured nature of facilities which has adverse impact on
the profitability of the Factoring entities.

Outlook

The Company would strive to maintain its asset quality through vigilant monitoring, recovery of
its non- performing assets, arrest further slippages of the accounts into NPA and grow its asset
base with addition of quality assets.

The challenges and opportunities remain in general to the all the players within the factoring
industry, and it hinges to a large extent on the management of NPA’s and ensuing recovery
made. The Factoring still has a lot of untapped potential, especially within the MSME sector.
The government is also backing the development of this product, underlining its importance
towards fuelling industrial growth.

To conclude, we can say that there are better days in the offing for factoring industry, as we
are on the threshold of a new beginning. The Factoring product holds promise and recent
developments in the form of credit guarantee scheme under the aegis. of Govt of India,
revisiting of credit protection clause by IRDA, enhancing the ambit of SARFAESI Act, passing of
Banking & Insolvency Bill, 2016 etc, would go a long way towards promoting the overall
factoring industry.

62



Risks and concerns

e More than 70% of overall asset base of the Company is unsecured

e Increased competition from banks consequent to permission to banks to undertake business
of factoring in India.

* Prolonged litigation involved in recovery of dues through cheque bouncing and civil cases.

» Cost of funds for an NBFC is higher than banks resulting into shrinking margins and limited
offtakes.

Internal Control Systems
The Company has an Internal Control System which is commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations.

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including
number of people employed

The Company has continuously adopted structures that help attract best external talent and
promote internal talent to higher roles and responsibilities. The Company’s people centric focus
providing an open work environment fostering continuous improvement and development
helped several employees realize their career aspirations during the year.

During the year under report, your Company had witnessed a high attrition rate and in order to
augment its headcount, your Company has recruited two officers across various verticals of the

Company. As on March 31, 2016, your Company had thirty nine employees on its roll vis-a-vis
fifty one employees as on March 31, 2015.

Other disclosures

Details of Environmental protection and conservation, technological conservation, renewable
energy developments, foreign exchange and CSR are mentioned in the Directors’ Report.
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Chandiwala Virmani & Associates LC—» \
| | 429

Chartered Accountants

TO THE MEMBERS OF IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IFCI FACTORS LIMITED (“the
company”),which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5} of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fait view of .the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting  principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; seleotion and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accurdcy and completéness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standatds andmatters which
are required to be included in the audit repott urider the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
there under, ‘

We conducted our gudit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical re¢uirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
migstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statetnents, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessthents, the auditor considers intetnal financial controf relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give true and fair view in order to desi gn audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances. An audit also inelides evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the aocounting estimates made
by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements. ‘

Dr. Behl House, Ind Floor, 13, Daryaganj, Delhi-110002. Ph: 011)%%&)33%9 Email:
chandiwalagupta@yahoo.com . o A}é.@@/h .“\V..;g
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and’

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the company as at 31" March 2016 and its Loss and its cash flow for the year
ended on that date,

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As requited by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (*the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of sectlon 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order

2. As requited by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

_b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been Icept by the Company so far

as appears from our examination of those books.

c) As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has branch offfce(s) only for
marketing purposes.Hence, no requirement to consider report of branch auditor and dealt with it
in preparing our report,

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2016, taken on
record by the Board of Ditectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2016, from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

2) There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark relatmg to the maintenance of accounts
and other matters connected therewith.

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report In
“Annexure B’ and

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

—m

. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impaot its financial position.

it. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
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fil. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required 1o be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. As per directions/sub directions issued by the C&AG of India under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act 2013 , we report that ;

Directions

L The company is having lease deed(s) for its leasehold Properties.
ii. Cases of waiverfwrite off of debtors/loan/interest are given hereunder:

(2) A sum of Rs. 11,33,74,438/-  has been waived on account of interest during the year
in 2 cases due to One Time Settlement {OTS).

() A sum of Rs.23,60,85,670/- has been written off during the year in 3 cases. Out of
which Rs.6.635,82,596/- has been written off in 1 case due to poor chances of recavery in
the opinion of management and out of balance 2 cases in which OTS was implemented
involving amount of Rs.16,95,03,074/- in one case Rs.8,19,84,317/- has been written off
due to non- recovery as per OTS terms,

il The company is a registered NBFC, therefore clause regarding maintenance of
inventories is not applicable,No assefs have been received as gift from Govtor other
authorities by the company.

Sub-Directions

iv. Necessary Independent verification has been made of information/inputs furnished to
Actuary, viz mumber of employees, average salary, retirement age and assumptions mads
by the Actuary regarding discount rate, future cost increzse, mortality rate, ete for arriving
at the provision for liability of retirement bepefits, viz gratuity, leave encashment, post-
retirement medical benefits etc,

¥, There is no Investment in CGS/8GS/Bonds/Debentures except debenture application
money as per Note No., 28, hence the verification of itles of ownership in respect of
CGS/SGS/Bonds/Debentures ete, are not applicabls.

FOR CHANDIWALA VIRMANI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

. RMZN (ko

(BHARAT BHUSHAN)
PARTNER
Membership No. 87365
Place: New Delhi
Dated: April 29,2016
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ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN
DATE ON THE ACCOUNTS OF YFCI FACTORS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2016

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(v  According to the information and explanations given to us, all fixed assefs have been
physically verified by the management in phased manner duting the year which in our opinion
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As
informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(¢) The Cottipany does not own any immovable property, hence clause not applicable.

li)  The Company does not have aiy inv.entoi*jf. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (ii) of the
Order, are not applicable. B

iii) As informed to us, the Company has not granted any loan, secured or uhsecured, to companies,
firms or other patties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies
Act, Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii) (2) to (c) of the Order are not applicable.

iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and
investments made, :

v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companles Act and the rules framed there under;
wherever applicable. Therefore the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi)  The Ceniral Government has not preseribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the setvices rendered by the company. '

vil) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records
produced before us for verification, the Company is regular in depositing, with appropriate
authorities, the undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and
Protection Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess and any
other material statutory dues applicable to it. As explained to us, the corpany did not have any
dues on account of employees® state insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,Custom dhty, excise duty,cess
and any other statutory dues wete in arreats as at 31st March 2016 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.




b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, thete are no material dues of income
tax, oxclise duty, sales tax, custom duty and service tax, which have not been deposited with
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except the following;

Name of the Statute | Natore of | Amount(Rs. | Period to “which the | Forum where
Dues in Lacs) amount relates dispute is pending
TIncome Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | 3,73,044 | A/Y 200203 | AOITRO
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax i 3,3 6,464 | A/Y 2003-04 "AOITRO
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 942,182 | A/Y 2004-05 AQ/TRO
Tncome Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 1149380 | A/Y2011-12 | AO/TRO
viil)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

ix)

X)

%1)

xii)

xiif)

xiv)

has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, banks, Government (both
state and Central)or debenture holders,

The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. On the basis of information and explanations

" given to us, the money raised by way of term loans have been applied for the purposes for

which they wete obtained,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the company
or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course
of our auclit,

To the best of our kinowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, Section 197 read with schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and accotding to the information and explanatioris given to us, the company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the tecords of the company, transactions with the related parties arein compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.




XV) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, the company has not been entered into non cash transaction with
directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not the
applicable.

xvi)  Company has obtained Certificate of registration under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, The company is rogistered with as “Non-Banking Financial Company-
Factors”,

FOR CHANDIWALA VIRMANI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Flmf{eg. No. OOOOSZ(NLM

(BHARAT BHUSHAN)
PARTNER
Membership No, 087365
Place: New Delhi
Dated: April 29, 2016

69



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financ'ial Repoétfn'g under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financlal reporting of IFCI Factors Limited ("the
Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management s responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financlal reporting criteria established by the Company
considlering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note oh Audit of
internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficlent
conduct of its business, Including adherence to Company’s policles, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial Information, as required under the
Companles Act, 2013, '

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibllity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guldance Note on
Audit of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financhal Reporting (the “Guidarice Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, Issued by ICAI and deemed $0 be prescribed under saction 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and i
such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financlal controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financia! controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing arid evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, Including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls
for our audit opinion on the Company’s intérnal financial controls system over financial reporting,
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Meaning of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting is a process deslgned to provide
reasonable assurance regarcling the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detall, accurately and falrly reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financlal statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

- Because of the Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporfing, including

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to arror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financlal control over financial reporting may become inadequate becatse of changes In
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporiing were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the Internal control over financlal reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR CHANDIWALA VIRMANI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg, No. OOOOS?W
ﬁw—& i

(BHARAT BHUSHAN)S
PARTNER '
Membership No. 087365
Place: New Delhi

Dated: April 29,2016




{FCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G0I074649
10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016

Asat Asat
PARTICULARS Note March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
No. Rs. Rs,
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 2 2,544,388,600 1,543,957,000
Reserves and Surplus 3 (398,075,342) (161,341,397)
1,946,313,258 1,382,615,603
Non-Current Liabilitles
Long-Term Borrowings 4 2,330,000,000 2,474,000,000
Long-Term Provislons 5 46,020,104 81,290,297
2,376,020,104 2,555,290,297
! Current Liabllities ‘ R
’ Short-Term Borrowings 6 2,911,542,679 2,132,196,655
Trade Payablas 7 75,033,945 21,488,996
‘ Other Current Liabilities 8 1,448,972,592 2,865,644,094
Short-Term Provisions 9 21,661,804 25,022,804
\ 4,457,211,020 5,044,352 549
TOTAL 8,779,544,382 8,9824358,449
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets : 10
Tangible Assets 1,411,325 1,634,969
Intangible Assets 2,626,040 1,137,397
4,037,365 2,772,366
: i Non-Current Investment 11 17,855,246 25,228,963
| : Deferred Tax Assets {nat) 25 666,693,958 547,841,630
B ‘ Long-Term Loans and Advances 12 1,287,189,643 881,463,258
Other Non-Current Assets 13 ) 109,472,881 61,399,219
! . 2,035,249,093 . 1,518,705,436
k Current Assets
i ) Current Investments 14 " 19,200,000
j ; : ' Trade Recelvahles 15 6,017,900,501 6,839,826,492
; ' Cash and Cash Equivalents . 16 70,155,858 169,889,315
Other Current Assets 17 656,238,340 434,637,206
6,744,295,289 7,463,553,013
5 TOTAL 8,779,544,382 - 8,982 258,449
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the flnanclal statements (Note No, 1, to 43)

As per our Audit Report of even date attached
For Chandiwala Virmani & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors

: Chartered Accountants

. Firm Reglstration No, 00 .

; iwlv z W (}Lﬁ \'Lf LA
1 s , r2)

(Sathir Slngh) {SwdRTY Ga

i Managing Director Diractor
| (Bharat Bhushan) DIN‘ 06887978 DIN: 06777363
| Parther
i Membership No. 087365 W
(Mlanish Jaln) {Samir Rahela)
Date: April 29, 2016 e Chief Hinanclal Officer Company Secratary

Place: New Delhi
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G0I074649
10th Floar, [FCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110019

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2016

Period Ended Year Ended
PARTICULARS Note March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
' No. Rs. Rs.
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 18 904,136,928 1,052,009,967
Other Income 19 5,110,063 4,537,793
Total {A) 909,246,991 1,056,547,760
EXPENSES
Employee Benefits Expense 20 50,080,551 46,117,519
Operating, Administrative and Other Expenses 21 76,878,269 63,487,119 -
Finance Costs 22 570,621,916 701,381,821
Depreclation and Amortization Expense 10 535,193 3,683,713
Total (B) 608,115,929 814,670,172
Profit Before Provisions-& Write Offs (A-B) 211,181,062 241,877,588
Provislons & Write Offs 23 766,717,335 1,123,358,984
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (555,586,273) — .- (881,481 396)
Tax Expenses: .
Current Tax - 7,322,968
Defarred Tax (Net) 25 {118,852,328) {293,192,537) -
Profit / (Loss) After Tax {436,733,945) {595,611,832)
Earnings Per Share (Face Value - Rs, 10 per share) 35
Baslc {5.50) {7.51)
Dluted {1.72) (3.86)
Summary of Slgnificant Accounting Policles i

The accompanying hotes are an Integral part of the financlal statements {Note No. 1 to 43}

.

As per our Audit Report of even date attached
For Chandiwala Virtmani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstratlon No. 000082N

OM ﬂ:r\waw 'ﬁ .

Chartared
Accountants

{Bharat BHushan)
Partner )
Membership No, 087365

Date: April 28, 2016
Place: New Delhi

1%

(Sathir Singh)
Managing Director
DIN: 06887978

e

{Mhnish Jain)

Chief Fihancial Officer

For and on behalf of Board pf Directors

o~

Director
DIN: 06777363

3@%’
{Samir Raheja)

Company Secretary

—
o

\AsudnieGarg |




IFCI EACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995GAI074649
10th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

Period Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs,

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Tax (555,586,273) (881,481,396)
Adjustments for:

Depreclation/Amortisation . 535,193 3,683,713

Share / Bond Issue Expenses charged to Securitles Premium Account - (8,911,350)

Bad Debts Written Off 236,085,670 246,409,991

Reversal of Provislon for Doubtful Debts (308,102,779) (331,450,465)

Provislon for Standard Assets (40,358,994) 18,212,605

Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Debts and Loans 852,519,721 1,190,186,853

Provision for Gratulty T 858,941 217,571

Provision for Leave Encashment 868,860 (41,965)

lhcome From Mutual Fund - (1,270,994)
Operating Profit Before quklng Capital Changes 186,820,339 235,554,563
Movement in Working Capital

Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings (364,653,976) (483,261,797)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables & other Current Liabilitles (363,126,553) 165,486,936

(Increase)/Decrease In Trade Receivables 271,628,467 (18,659,995)

(Increase)/Decrease tn Loans & Advances, Other Current & Non-Current Assets (856,754,337) 159,634,767
Net Cash Used in Operations {1,126,086,060) 58,754,474
Direct Tax Pald - (7,322,968)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activitias {1,128,086,060) 51,431,506
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets / Capital Advance {652,714) (1,216,502)

Provision for Diminution In value of Non-Current Investments 7,373,717 -

Investment in Current and Non Current Investments 19,200,000 -

Incommie From Mutual Fund - 1,270,994
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities 25,921,003 54,092
€, CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Suhordinate Debts Raised - (750,000,000)

Issue of Preference Shares 1,000,4311,600 750,380,000

Dividend Paid - {3,150)
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities 1,000,431,600 376,850
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (99,733,457) 51,862,448
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 169,889,315 118,026,867
Closing Cash and Cash Equivaleits 70,155,858 169,889,315
Note:

1 Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents: March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Cash on Hand 20,511 27,651
Balances with Banks 70,135,347 169,861,664

70,155,858 169,889,315

2 Previous year figures hava been re-grouped/re-arranged/re-classified wherever necessary to make them comparable with the current

year figures.

As perour Audit Repart of even date attached
For Chandiwala Virmani & Associates

Chartered Accountants
?L“‘ V‘}\“M-“J

Firm Registration No, 0000

¥

{Bharat Bhushan)
Partner
Membership No, 087365

Chavtered
Accountants ) @'

Date: April 29, 2016
Place: New Delhi

1

For and on behaif of Board of Director

{Sathir Singh)
Managing Director
DIN: 06887578

i

(Menish lain)

Chief Financial Officer

Jodtonss Smgh’ Mm;\if\

(Sudhir Garg) ; o

Director
DIN: 06777363

N
(Sarnir Raheja)

Company Secretary




IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:~U74899D1.1995G0I074649
10th Floor, IFC! Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

¢}

d)

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, on historical cost convention, in
accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and after
taking into account the applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to Non Banking
Financial Companies from time to time and in accordance with the mandatory Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Use of Estimates . :

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and llabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the
balance sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are
based on the management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of
financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions and any revision to
accounting estimates is recognised in the period in which they actually materialise.

Revenue Recognition

fncome from factoring and other financing activities is accounted on accrual basis except in the case of
non-performing assets where Income is accounted on realisation basis as per prudential guidelines laid
down by the RBI.

Classification of Assets and Provisioning

i) All credit exposures are classified inte performing and non-performing assets (NPAs) as per
guldelines laid down by the RBI. Further, NPAs are classified into sub-standard, doubtful and Joss
assets based on the criteria stipulated by RBI,

l), Provision for NPAs and restructured/rescheduled assets Is made as per guidelines laid down by the
RBI,

iii} Provision for standard assets is made @ 0.50%.

Additional provision is made against specific assets over and above what is stated above, if in the

. opinion of the management, increased provision is necessary.

Fixed Assets, Depreciation & Amortization
(i) Tangible :
Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, Depreciation has
been provided on straight line method {SLM) over the use full life of assets as prescribed under
Schedule {1 1o the Companies Act 2013.
(i1} Intangible : .
In accordance with Accounting Standard-26, Intangible Assets are valued at cost less accumulated
amortization and any impairment losses. Expenditure on major software products is written off as
prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013, .
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1FClI FACTORS LIMITER
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G01074649
10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

f}

g)

h)

i

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that any asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying value of such assets is reduced to its recoverable
amount and the impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the. balance
sheet date there is any indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer-exists, then such
loss is reversed and the asset is restated to that effect,

Factored Debts

Debts factored are shown as ‘Trade Recelvables’, The unpaid balance of debts factored and due to the
clients on collection Is included under ‘Other Current Liabilities’ as ‘Contractual Liability against
Collection of Trade Receivables’.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of
transaction. Gains/losses arising out of fluctuation in exchange rates on settlement are recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end and gains/losses on translation are provided
for in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Premium/discount on hedging transactions is spread over the
period to which it relates.

Investments

Investments are classified into long-term investments and current Investments,

a) Long-term investments:
Long-term investments are stated at cost. A provision is made for diminution other than temporary
on an individual basis,

b) Current investments:
Current Investments are stated at the lower of cost or market value,

Taxation

a) Current Tax is determined and provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxahle income
for the year.

b) Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the
difference between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in one period and are
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred Tax assets and liabllities are
measured using tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are recognised if there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such Deferred Tax assets can be
realised. Deferred taxes are reviewed for the carrying values at each balance sheet date,

Employee Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plan
Employee benefits in the form of contribution towards Provident Fund and Family Pension Schemes
are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of

Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to the. respect]ve funds are due
\\\cmdnf c? ‘




iFCl FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G01074649
10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehruy Place, New Delhi 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

p)

b} Defined Benefit Plan
Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity Is considered as defined benefit obligations and are
provided for on the basis of an actuarlal valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the
date of the Balance Sheet, '

c) Other Long Term Benefits
Long term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the
projected unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet.

Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Leases : :

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownarship are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals are charged to the Statement of Profit &
Loss on straight line basis over the lease term. ‘

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
a) Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only using a substantial degree of
estimation, if:
(i) the Company hasa present obligation as a result of past event.
(i) a probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and
{iii) the amount of abligation can be reltably estimated.
Reimbursements expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognized onhly
when it s virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.
b) Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
(i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. ,
(il) a possible ohligation, unless the proba bility of outflow of resources is remote.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities are reviewed by the management at each Balance Sheet date.

~¢) Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For
the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Share Issue Expenditure
Expenses incurred in relation to issue of Shares, Debentures & Bonds (net of taxes) are charged to
Securities Premium Account.

Employee Stock Option Plan

Measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based payment plans is done in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-basad Payments, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). The Company measures compensation cost relating to employes
stock options using the intrinsic value method. Compensation gxpense, if any, is amortifgg over the

vesting period of the option on a straight line basis. ,f{é“\wﬁﬁ’@\“
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As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs, Rs,
2. SHARE CAPITAL
Authotised:
200,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 esach 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
(Previous Year 200,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

- 200,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 2,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
(Previous Year 100,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 1.0 each) o
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:

79,357,700 Equity Shares {Previous Year 79,357,700) of Rs,10 each fully paid up 793,577,000 793,577,000
73,038,000, 9% Compulsorily Convertible Cumuylative Preference Shares 750,380,000 750,380,000
(Pravious Year 75,038,000) of Rs.10 each fully paid up
10,00,43,160, 10% Compulsorlly Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares 1,000,431,600 -
{Previous Year Nil) of Rs,10 each fully paid up
TOTAL 2,544,388,600 1,543,957,000
3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 100,820,478 109,731,828
Less: Expenses on increase In Authorised Capltal (net of taxes) - 8,911,350
Closing Balance 100,820,478 100,820,478
Statutory Reserve Fund
{under sectlon 45 IC of Raserve Bank of India Act)
Opening Balance 175,573,439 175,573,439
Add: Transfer from Surplus Balance In Statement of Profit and Loss . o -
Closing Balance 175,573,439 175,573,439
General Reserve
Opening Balance 3,165,000 3,165,000
Less: Transfer to Statement of Profit and Loss )
Closing Balance 3,165,000 3,165,000
Surplus Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance : {440,900,314) 155,699,903
Add: Profit / (Loss) for‘the period (436,733,945) (595,611,832)
less: Appropriations
Transfer to Statutory Reserve Fund - -
Transitlonal Depreciation - 988,385
Closing Balance (877,634,259) * (440,900,314)
TOTAL {598,075,342) (161,341,397)
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As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2018
Rs. Rs.
4, LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Debentures / Bonds
Secured # .
Redeemable, Non-Convertibie Bonds 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Unsecured
Redeemable, Non-Convertlble Bonhds 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Perpetual, Non-Convertible Debenture - IFC] Ltd - Related Party (Tier-l Capital) 250,000,000 250,000,000
Term Loans
Sacured *
- From Banks 80,000,000 224,000,000
~ From Others -IFCl Ltd - Related Party - -
Unsecuread !
~ Subordinate Debts -+ IFCI Ltd - Related Party (Tier-/l Caplital) - -
TOTAL 2,330,000,000 2,474,000,000
# Secured by pari passu charge on corporate loan recelvables & current assets other than factored receivables.
* Secured by parl passu charge on factored receivables by way of hypothecation. :
5, LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Leave Encashment ) 4,046,500 3,177,640
Gratuity 3,669,087 2,810,146
Contingent Provisions against Standard Assets 23,070,000 38,843,000
Sundry Liabilities Account {Interast Capltalisation) 15,234,517 36,459,511
TOTAL 46,020,104 81,290,297
6, SHORT TERIM BORROWINGS
Secured®
Working Capital Demand Loan- From Banks 2,375,000,000 1,000,000,000.
Short Term Loans :
-From Others 250,000,000 -
{Includes Rs, 250,000,000 (Previous Year Rs, Nil} from IFCl Ltd-Related Party) |
Cash Credit ~ From Banks 286,542,679 636,164,269
Unsecured
Bank Overdraft - 496,032,386
TOTAL 2,911,542,679 2,132,196,655
* Credit faclfities are secured by pari passu charge on factored receivables by way of hypothecation.
7. TRADE PAYABLE
Sundry Craditors 75,033,945 21,488,996
TOTAL 75,033,945 21,488,996
8, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Contractual Liability against Collection of Trade Recelvables 1,121,766,113 1,553,383,343
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (secured)
- From Banks 144,000,000 144,000,000
- From Others ~ IFCl Ltd - Related Party - 1,000,000,000
Interest Accrued on Borrowings: ,
- Not due 175,306,625 160,938,111
Income Recelved In Advance 5,711,649 3,988,434
Unpald Dividends 101,570 101,570
Other Liabllitias 2,086,635 3,232,636
TOTAL 1,448,972,592 2,865,644,094
9. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Leave Encashment 184,212 184,212
Gratuity £ T 60,592 60,592
Contingent Provisions against Standard Assets PN 21,417,000 24,778,000
TOTAL s f 21,661,804 25,022,804
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

As at As at
Mareh 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Rs, Rs.
114, NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT
Non-Trade, Quoted
- Net 4 Indla Limlted 20,743,679 20,743,679

3,232,874 Equity Shares (Previous Year - 3,232,874 ) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up '
- KEW Industries Limited 4,611,567 4,611,567
2,931,558 Equity Shares (Previous Year - 2,931,558) of Rs, 10 each fully paid up
25,355,246 25,855,246

l.ess 1 Provision for Diminution In value 7,500,000 126,283
TOTAL 17,855,248 25,228 963
Note:
Book Value 25,355,246 25,355,246
Market Value 13,584,976 15,832,923
12, LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Term Loans (Considerad Good)
Consldered Good
- Securad ¥ 978,035,545 472,557,841
- Unsecurad 76,297,457 407,777,939
Considered Doubtful .
- Secured * 33,462,691 -
- Unsecured 330,201 128 -
Total 1,417,996,821 880,315,780
Less.: Provislon for Bad and Doubtfyl Loans 180,807,178 -

1,237,189,643 880,315,780
Capital Advances (Unsecured) - 1,147,478
TOTAL 1,237,189,643 881,463,258
*Term Loans are secured agalnst Bank Guarantee, mortgage of property & llen on shares.
13, OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{Unsecured, Considered Good)
Security Deposits 8,000 8,000
Advance Income Tax (Includling earlier years) (Net of Provisions) 109,464,881 61,391,219
TOTAL 109,472,881, 61,399,219
14, CURRENT {NVESTMENTS )
(Non-Tradle, at cost or market price, whichever Is less) .
Debenture Application Money- in Arch Pharmalabs Limited 19,200,000 19,200,000
Less: Provision . (19,200,000} -
TOTAL - 1.9,200,000.
15, TRARE RECEIVABLES
Factored Debts:
Quistanding for over five months 2,568,199,106 2,307,693,294
(Other Debts 5,369,022,082 6,137,241,981
Total 7,937,221,138 8,444,935,275
Less : Provision for Bad and Doubiful Debts 1,919,320,547 1,605,108,783
TOTAL . o 6,017,900,591 6,439,826,492
Out of above
Considered Good
- Secured * 1,869,661,095 918,788,452
- Unsecured 3,499,360,937 5,218,453,529
Considered Doubtful . _ :
- Secured * 233,813,304 162,699,944
- Unsecured 2,334,385 802 2,144,993,350
TOTAL 7,937,221,138 8,444,935,275

*Trade Recelvables are secured agalnst Bank Guarantee, mortgage of property and llen on shares,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 381, 2016

As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
.... i e RS
16, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with Banks 70,135,347 169,861,664
: {Includes Rs, 101,570 (Previous Year Rs, 101,570) earmarked balances for Unpaid
Dlvidend) .
i ‘ Cash on Hand o 20,511 27,651
‘ ; TOTAL 70,155,858 169,889,315
' ' 17, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS .
(Unsscured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Current Maturitles of Long Tarm Loans
Conslderad Good
- Secured * 445,094,749 416,840,241
- Unsecured - -
Considered Doubtful
- Secitred ¥ ’ 258,002,390 9,849,979
- Unsecured ' . - -
Total 704,097,139. 428,690,220
Less : Provision for Bad and Daubtful Loans 50,898,000 1,500,000
653,199,139 425,180,220
Interest Accrued But not Due . - 2,112,000
Advances Recoverable In Cash or In Kind or for Value to be Recelved 3,039,701, 7,334,986
TOTAL 656,238 840 434,637,206

*Tetm Loans are secured agalnst Bank Guarantee, mortgage of property & lien on shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

Period Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Rs. Rs.

18, REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 71,13 84.75
Discount and Service Charges 711,273,400 847,498,911
Interest Income on Term Loan 158,248,635 167,048,806
Application and-Administration Charges 34,613,893 37,462,250
TOTAL 904,136,028 1,052,009,967
19. OTHER INCOME
Factoring Bad Debts Recovered 5,000,000 -
Income from Mutual Funds - 1,270,994
Exchange Fluctuation (Net) 12,871 -
Unclalmed Balances Written Back “ 3,028,465
Miscellanaous Incoma 97,192 238,334
TOTAL 5,110,063 4,537,793
20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Other Benefits 45,903,723 " 41,878,554
Contribution to Provident fund 3,093,743 2,900,344
Staff Welfare Expanses 1,083,085 1,338,621,
TOTAL 50,080,551 46,117,519
21, OPERATING, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES
Rent, Rates and Taxes ' 34,128,555 33,402,613
Printing and Stationery 847,607 848,606
Postage, Telephone and Fax 2,332,248 2,199,708
Travelling & Conveyance 3,098,702 3,108,152
Conferences & Seminar 102,600 259,552
Legal and Professional 12,271,206 9,428,825
Business Promotion 399,748 890,443
Repairs and Malntenance

-Bulldings 386,295 420,585

-Others 2,028,838 2,851,323
Import Factor Commission 11,022,963 6,712,441
Expenses On Increase Of Authorised Share Capital 3,869,000 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 6,390,507 3,360,871
TOTAL . 76,878,269 63,487,119
22, FINANCE COSTS .
Interest Expense 563,667,942 695,577,477
Other Borrowing Costs 5,609,910 4,229,501
Bank Charges 1,344,064 1,574,843
TOTAI 570,621,916 701,381,821
23, PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS
Bad Debts Written Off 236,085,670 246,409,991
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts Written Back (308,102,779) (331,450,465)
Provisions: )
-Standard Assets (40,358,994) 18,212,605

-Bad and Doubtful Debts and Loans

Provision for Diminution In value of Non-Current Investments

Provision for Debentures

852,519,721 1,190,186,853
7,373,717 -
19,200,000 -

766,717,335 1,123,358,984
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24, Contingent Liabilities & Commitme_nts

24.1 Contingent Liabilities

There Is a contingent liability in respect to Dividend payable on Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative
Preference Shares is Rs, 118,287,489 which has not been provided for as per sanction terms &

conditions.

24.2 Commitments

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

(net of advances) Rs. NIL (Previous year Rs. 139,045).

b) Undrawn commitments (in line with RBI circular dated December 26, 2011) Rs. 1,393,197 (Previous

Year Rs. 6,051,959).

25, Deferred Tax Assets (Net) _
The Deferred Tax Assets {Net) as on March 31, 2016 comprise of the following:

{Amount in Rs)

Particular As at As at
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
l.eave Encashment 1,307,290 1,142,693
Gratuity .o 1,152,471 975,764
Provisions for Bad & Doubtful Debts and Loans 664,666,949 546,086,325
Depreciation (432,752) (363,152}
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 666,693,958 547,841,630
Amount credited to Statement of Profit and Loss 118,852,328 293,192,532

26. The Company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under

“The Micro Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006” and hence disclosure related to amounts unpaid as at

the year end together with interest paid/payable under this Act has not been given.

27. letters seeking confirmation of outstanding balances of Trade Reteivables, Loans and Advances as at
February 29, 2016 have been sent to all the borrowers except cases under litigation, Confirmation in some
cases is awalted. In some of the cases where agencles have informed different balances, reconciliation is

underway.

28.  Arch Pharmalabs Ltd was sanctioned a Domestic Sales Bill Factoring Facility of Rs. 10.00 crores and
Domestic Purchase Bill Factoring Facility of Rs. 6.00 crores within the overall prepayment limit of Rs, 15.00
crores by the Committee of Directors in May, 2011, The said facilities have been restructured under the
Corporate Debt Restructuring {("CDR"), the cut-off date being April 01, 2013. The total amount outstanding
in the books of the Company as on April 01, 2013 was Rs. 15.21 crotes. As per the terms of the CDR, an
amount of Rs. 13.29 crores has been converted to Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) which is to be
secured by first-parl passu charge on the current assets and second pari passu charge on the fixed assets of

the Company. : .

An amount of Rs. 1.92 crores has been tr,_e,a\i%g” 5

Convertible Debentures (OCDs), The OCDs,\f@ ?f»""é"“arl-['
‘-.\l
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

issuance of debentures is pending due tc a court order which restricts the company from further
encumbering its assets and change in the shareholding structure. The security creation will be complied

with once the orders are vacated. During the year, as per prudence, income h

Debenture Application Money.

29. Auditors Remuneration:

as not been recoghized on

{Amount in Rs)

Particular Year Ended Year Ended

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Audit Fee 520,000 520,000
Tax Audit Fee 50,000 50,000
Other Services 195,000 250,000
Out of Pocket Expenses 20,000 20,000
Service Tax 110,925 101,352
Total 8,95,925 941,352

30. a) Detail of Bonds (Face Value Rs 1,000,000 each, redeemable at par)
(Amount in Rs)
Mo. of Rate of Date of Put/Call As at As at

Bonds Interest Redemption Option 31,03.2016 31.03,2015
1000 10.24% May 17, 2023 No 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
411 10.20% April 23, 2023 Yes (April 23, 2020) 411,000,000 411,000,000
170 10.25% March 28, 2023 Yes (March 28, 2020) 170,000,000 170,000,000
214 10.15% April 23, 2018 Yes (April 23, 2016) 214,000,000 214,000,000
187 10.15% March 28, 2018 Yes (March 28, 2016) 187,000,000 187,000,000
18 10.25% March 28, 2018 No 18,000,000 18,000,000

h) 12.50%, 500 Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs 500,000 each issued at par are perpetual in nature and
the Company has ‘Call Option’ exercisable after June 6, 2022 (a minimum period of 10 years from the

date of issue), subject to RBI regulations.

t) Terms of repayment of Long Term Loans:

(Amount in Rs)

e A

From Remaining Repayment Rate of Asat As at

Tenor Term Interest 31.08.2016 31.03.2015 |
Banks | Uptod Year Monthly Repayment 11.88% 144,000,000 144,000,000
Banks | 1Year—2Year | Monthly Repayment 11.88% 80,000,000 144,000,000
Banks | 2Year—4Year | Monthly Repayment 11.88% - 80,000,000
Others | Upto 1 Year Bullet Repayment 11.25% 1,000,000,000
Others | 1Year—2Years | Bullet Repayment - - -
Others | 3 Years -5 Years | Bullet Repayment | - - -
T - ) S \(\'ildl]/‘?u' -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

31. Foreign Exchange exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31.03,2016 31.03,2015

Cash & Bank Balances

Euro 130,999.68 278,40

uso 483,249.42 500.00

Sundry Creditor

Euro 1,759.35 2,474,12

ush 48,020,67 27,085.64

GBP - - |

82. Segmental Information
Based on the guiding principles given in the Accounting Standard 17 on "Segment Reporting", lssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla, the Company's primary business segment is financing, The

Company operates in one geographical segment and no further disclosures as per AS-17 are required to be

made.

33, Related Party Disclosure:

A) Names of the Related Parties:
i) Holding Company :» IFC! Limited

ii) Subsidiaries, Associate and Joint Venture of the Holding Company

[FCl Commadity Limited

[FIN Credit Limited

[IDL Realtors Private Limited

IFIN Securities Finance Limited :
Tourlsm Finance Corporation of India Limited

Rajasthan Consultancy Organisation Limited

[FCl Sycamore Capital Advisors Private Lirnited

Related Party Relationship

IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
IFCI Financial Service Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
[FCI Venture Capital Funds Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
MPCON Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited Fellow Subsidiaries

Step down Fellow Subsidiarias
Step down Fellow Subsidiaries
Step down Fellow Subsidiaries
Step down Fellow Subsidiaries

Associate
Assets Care & Reconstruction Enterprise Limited Associate
Himachal Consultancy Organisation Limited Assoclate
North India Technical Consultancy Organisation Limited Associate
HARDICON Limited Associate

Joint Venture
Joint Venture

i) Key Management Personnel
Mr. Bikash Kanti Roy (Managing Director) (till August 10, 2015)
Mr. Satbir Singh (Managing Director) {w.e.f, August 10, 2015)
Mr. Ankur Agarwal (Company Secretary) (till luly 16, 2015)
Mr. Samir Raheja (Company Secretary) (w.e.f. July 17, 2015)
Mr. Lalit Bansal (Chief Financial Officer) (1ill January 29, 2016)
Mr. Manish Jalr {Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f Febrisary 05, 2016)

&6
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B) Transactions with Related Parties and Balances thereof;

Amount In Rs)

Nature of Transaction Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rent
To Holding Company 31,900,137 33,402,613
Loan
From Holding Company
Opening Balance 1,000,000,000 | 1,750,000,000
Add: Fresh Taken 250,000,000 -
Less: Repayments / Conversion 1,000,000,000 | 750,000,000
Closing Balance 250,000,000 | 1,000,000,000
Perpetual, Non-Convertible Debenture [
From Holding Company
Opening Balance. 250,000,000 250,000,000
Add: Fresh Taken - -
Less: Repayments / Conversion - -
Closing Balance 250,000,000 250,000,000
interest
To Holding Company
Qpening Balance 23,424,659 66,897,261
Add: Interest for the year 65,291,065 204,250,000
Less: Repayments 82,017,778 247,722,602
Closing Balance 6,697,947 23,424,659
Reimbursemant of Expenses:
To Holding Company
- Managerial Remuneration 2,858,633 3,483,862
- Others ' 1,201,622 1,428,576
To IFCI Financial Services Limited - 50,751
To HARDICON Limited - 122,107
To NITCON Limited - 214,165
Remuneration Paid to Key Management Personnel
Mr, Lalit Bansal 1,507,079 1,225,105
Mr. Rajiv L. Jha - 656,298
Mr. Ankur Agarwal 291,971 84,443
Mr. Samir Raheja 658,933 -
Mr. Manish Jain 250,952 -
Balance Recoverable / (Payable) at year end:
To Holeing Company (432,377} (302,322)
From IFCI Financial Services Limited (525,872 1,420,983
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

34. Lease

Office Premises are on operating lease with tenor upte 12 months and renewable on such terms and
conditions as may be mutually agreed between the Company and the Lessor. Lease rentals paid are charged

as rent in Statement of Profit and Loss.

35. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
' ) 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Net Profit/(Loss) as per Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs.) (436,733,945) | (595,611,832)
Net Profit/{Loss) for Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS (Rs.) (436,733,945) | (595,611,832)
Net Profit/{Loss) for Equity Shareholders for Diluted EPS (Rs.) {436,733,945) | (595,611,832)
Weighted Average no, of Equity Shares for Basic EPS 79,357,700 79,357,700
Add: Equity shares for conversion of preferences shares (CCCPS) 175,081,160 75,038,000
Weighted Average no. of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS 254,438,860 | 154,395,700
Basic Earnings per Share (Face Value - Rs. 10 per share) (Rs.) (5.50) (7.51)
Diluted Earnings per Share (Face Value - Rs. 10 per share) (Rs.) (1.72) (3.86)
36. Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
{Amount in Rs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
© 31.03.2016 31.08.2015
Expenditure in Forelgn Currency
Membership Fee and Subscription Fee 561,525 525,300
tmport Factor Commission 8,976,254 4,582,119
Others 436,994 420,905

37. Employees Benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company has recognized Provident Fund and Family Pension Schemes contribution Rs, 3,093,743
{previous year Rs. 2,900,344) under defined contribution plan as an expense in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

iy Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has defined benefit plans in respect of gratuity and leave encashment. Valuation in
respect of gratuity and leave encashment has been carried out by an independent actuary, as at the

Balance sheet date on Project Unit Credit ‘method.
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10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2016

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit/ expenses recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans;

a) Principal Assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefits are:

Actuarial Assumptions Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31,03.2015
Discounting Rate 8.00% 8.50%
Future Salary Increase 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
Mortality Rate 1ALM (2006-2008) LIC (1994-96)
duly modified
Ages Withdrawal rate (%) Withdrawal rate (%)
- Up to 30 Years 3 3
- From 31 1o 44 years 2 2
- Above 44 years 1 1
b) Changes in the Present Value of Obligation:
{Amount in Rs)
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
- 31.03.2016 | 81.03.2015 | 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015
a) Present value of obligation as at beginning of 2,870,738 2,653,167 | 3,361,852 3,403,817
the year '
| b} Interest cost 244,013 225,519 285,758 289,325
c) Past Service cost - - - ;
d) Current Service cost 733,711 599,861 869,246 743,839
e) Benefits paid (432,845) (183,496) | (981,759) (980,028)
f) Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation 314,062 (424,313) 695,615 (95,201)
g) Present value of obligation as at end of the 3,729,679 2,870,738 4,230,712 3,361,852
year ‘
c) Fair value of Plan assets;
(Amount in Rs)
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
_ : 31.03.2016 | 31.08.2015 | 31.03.2016 | 31,03.2015
a) Fair Value of Plan Assets as at beginning of - - -
the year
b) Expected return - - - -
¢) Past Service cost - - - -
d) Contribution - - . -
e) Benefits paid : - - -
f) Fair Value of Plan Assets as at end of the year - - - -
g) Funded status A g | (8,729,679) | (2,870,738) | (4,230,712) (3,361,852)
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G01074649

10th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi —

110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

d) Actuarial gain/loss recognized:

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
31.,03.2016 | 31.03.2015 | 31.03:2016 | 31.03.2015
a) Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year-Obligation 314,062 (424,313) 695,615 (95,101)
b) Actuarlal (gain)/loss for the year-Plan assets - - - -
¢) Actuarial {gain)/ loss recognized in the year 314,062 (424,313) 695,615 (95,101)
e} Amounts to be recognized in the Balance Sheet:

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
| 31,03.2016 | 31.03.2015 | 31.03.2016 | 31,03.2015
a) Present value of obligation as at end of the 3,729,679 2,870,738 | 4,230,712 3,361,852
year
b) Fair Value of Plan Assets as at end of the year - - -
¢} Funded status (3,729,679) | (2,870,738) | (4,230,712) | (3,361,852)
d) Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet {3,729,679) | (2,870,738) | (4,230,712) | (3,361,852)
f)  Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
- 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015 | 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015

a) Current Service cost 733,711 599,861 869,246 743,839
b} Past service cost - - - -
¢) Interest cost 244,013 225,519 285,758 289,325
d} Return on the plan assets - - - -
@) Net Actuarial {(gain}/loss recognized in the 314,062 (424,313) 695,615 (95,101)
year
) Expenses/(Income) recognized in the 1,291,786 401,067 | 1,850,619 938,063
Statement of Profit and Loss

38. Disclosure in terms of Notification No. DNBR {(PD) CC. No. 002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated November 10, 2014

issued by Reserve Bank of India are as under:

A. Capital:
(Amount in Rs)
ftems As at As at
31.03.2016 | 31.08.2015

CRAR (%) 22.32% 16.10%
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 19.72% 14.20%
CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 2.60% 1,90%
Amount of subordinate debt raised as Tier-l capital N““‘ﬂm i Nil Nil
Amount raisad by Issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments \’3’ ?,, Nil Ni

| % of Perpetual Debt t ;Jéﬂ%ﬁll\al (ex-Perpetual debt) Cha 9 79% 17.65%

(,, g(:\)dméy




IFCI FACTORS LIMITED v
CIN NO:~U74899DL1995G0OI1074649
10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

B. Investments:

{Amount In Rs)

Particulars Asat As at
31,03.2016 31.03.2015
Value of investment
Gross Value of Investments
{a) {inIndia 44,555,246 44,555,246
{b} |Outside India, -
Provisions for Depreciation
(a) }InIndia 26,700,000 126,283
{b) |Outside India, - -
Net Value of Investments
(@} {InIndia 17,855,246 4,4428,963
(b) [Outside India, - -
Movement of provisions held towards depreciatnon on investments 1
i Opening balance 126,283 126,2§§
(i) |Add : Provisions made during the yearw' 26,573,717 -
(i} [Less : Write-off / write-back of EXCESS provisions during the year - -
(iv) |Closing balance 26,700,000 126,283

C. Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction;

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2016 31.03,2015
(i) No. of accounts Nil Nil
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts Nil Nil
sold to SC/ RC ,
(iTi) Aggregate consideration Nil Nil ]
(iv} Additional consideration realized in respect of Nil Nil
accounts transferred in earlier years
{v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value /\ﬂﬂﬁ'r/ . Nil Nil
\'a
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CIN NO:-U74899D1.1995GQ|074649
10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

D. Details of Assignment transactions undertaken:

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(i) No. of accounts Nil NIl
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold Nil Nil
(iif) Aggregate consideration - Nil NIl
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of Nil - Nil
accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value Nil Nil
E. Details of Non-performing Financial Assets Purchased:
Particulars As at As at
: v 31.03.2016 31.03,2015
{i){a} No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(i}{b} Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
(fi){a)Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
fg {ii)(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
I
* F. Details of Non-performing Financial Assets Sold:
Particulars As at As at
. 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(i} No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
(i1) Aggregate outstanding Nil N
(iiffAggregate consideration received Nil Nil

2
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1FCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:~-U74899DL1995G01074649
10th Floor, IEC] Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi -~ 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

H. Exposure to Real Estate Sector;

(Amount in Rs)

Category

' As at
31.03.2016

As at
31.03.2015

Direct exposure

{i) Residential Mortga'ge‘s -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential
property that Is or will be occupied by the borrower or
that Is rented; {Individual housing loans up to Rs.15 lakh
‘may be shown separately)

(it) | Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real
estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or

construction, etc.). Exposure would also include
non-fund based (NFB) limits;

Warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and

1,072,972,417

738,663,724

(iii) | Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities {MBS) and
other securitized exposures -

A Residential,

B Commercial Real Est'ate.

indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposu'r'es' on Natiohal
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies {HFCs).

Exposure to Capital Market:

(Amount in Rs.)

Paﬂiculars -

As at .

~ 31.08.2016

Asat .

 31.08.2015

Direct Investments i'h"equity sha r-es; convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
carporate debt

25,355,246

25,355,246

()

units of equity oriented mutual funds

Advances agélnst sha‘fes/bondé/debéhtﬁré or other securities 6r
| on clean basls to individuals for investment in shares (including
IPQs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and

Nl

Nl

(i)

Advances for any other purpose where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented

237,430,017

452,555,541




IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G01074649 :
10th Floor, IFC| Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Dethi — 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

mutual funds are taken as primary securities

(Iv) | Advances for any other purpose to the extent secured by the 173,326,787
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
dehenture or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e, where
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
does not fully cover the advances.

230,406,997

(v) | Secured and unsecured advances to the stockbrokers and _ Nil
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers,

Ni

“(vi) | Loan sanctioned to corporate against the secur‘ityof‘éhares /| N
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources,

Nil

{vil) | Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows'/ NI
issues,

Nil

(viii) | All exposure to Venture Capital Funds both registered and 1B Nil
unregistered)

Nil

Total exposuire to capital market 436,112,050

708,317,784

J. Details of Single Borrower Limit / Group Borrower Limit exceeded by the Company:

During the year, the Corpany has not exceeded the prudential exposure limit in respect of fresh
sanctions. However, in some cases as stated below, sanction limit/outstanding balance are exceeding
the prudential exposure limit in respect of cases sanctioned in earlier years. However as on March 31,
2016 Company has net owned fund of Rs. 140.20 Crore, as per prudential norms sanction limit is Rs,

21.00 crore,
L Amount in Rs.)
Particulars . _ T ~ Sanctioned | Outstanding
: L _ _ _ | Limit Balance
SYNERGIES CASTINGS LIMITED (EXPORT) 220,000,000 | 222,315,089
OMAXE | T 7| 135,000,000 | 195,000,000
VATKALMITED '”'" | 180,000,000 | 130,000,000
VNR INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED | 180,000,000 | 180,000,000
EMCLMITED | o 180,000,000 | 182,246,706
'IND SWIFT LABORATORIESLTD. | 180,000,000 | 178,888,310
LEEWAY LOGISTIC LTD. T | 180,000,000 | 138,412,899
TDI INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED | 180,000,000 | 145,259,219

°\5 -
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-UU74899DL1995G 01074649
10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi ~ 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED VIARCH 31, 2016

C & C CONTRUCTION LIMITED (SALES) 180,000,000 75,437,984
GEf INDUSTRIAL SYSTEMS LTD. 180,000,000 147,493,193
R.P. INFOSYSTEMS PVT. LTD. 180,000,000 152,100,758
CORE EDUCATION AND TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 175,000,000 149,110,690
BLUE STAMPINGS &FORGINGS LIMITED 170,000,000 110,653,539
ARCH PHARMALABS LIMITED 150,000,000 161,905,179
ACCURATE TRANSFORMERS LTD. 150,000,000 147,228,879
ARCHON ENGICON PVT, LTD. 150,000,000 133,275,121
CONCAST STEEL & POWER LIMITED 150,000,000 131,037,408
ERA INFRA ENGINEERING LIMITED ~ SB 150,000,000 150,000,000
FUTURE RETAIL LIMITED 150,000,000 112,959,383
RAUNAQ AUTOMOTIVE COMP. LTD, 150,000,000 93,413,756
TRIMEX SANDS PRIVATE LIMITED 150,000,000 .1,883,586
APEX BUILDSYS LIMITED 150,000,000 150,009,370
NET 4 COMMUNICATIONS LTD. 150,000,000 133,642,858
SHREESHYAM PULP AND. BOARD MILL LIMITED - 150,000,000 149,717,183

K. Certificated of Registration no. as issued by Reserve Bank of India - B-14.01248

L. No penalty has been imposed by RBI and any other regulators during the year.

M.Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:
Rating Agency CARE Ratings
Instruments/Facilities As at . As at

31.03.2016 , 31.03.2015
Long Term bank facilities * CARE A - (SO) (Single A Structured | CARE A - (SO) {Single A Structured
Obligation) Cbligation)

Short Term bank facilities*® CARE A1 (SO) ((A One CARE A1 (SO) {{A One

(Structured Obligation)) {Structured Obligation))

(Standalone)

Long Term bank facilities CARE BBB (Triple B) CARE BBB (Triple B)
{Standalone)
Short Term Bank Facilities CARE A3 { AThree) CARE A3 { A Three)

Long Term Non-Convertible
Debentures

CARE A- {Single A Minus) CARE A- {Single A Minus)

Commercial Paper (CP) *

CARE A1 (SO) (A One) CARE A1 (S0} {(A One)

*Structured Obligation ----—-

{Structured Obligation)) (Structured Obligation))
> Backed by Letter of Comfort from IFCI Limited. seman,




IFC! FACTORS LIMITED

CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G01074649

10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delh] -~ 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2016

Rating Agency Brickwork Ratings

Instruments/Facilities As at As at
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Secured Non-Convertible BWR A-: Pronounced BWR A Minus | BWR A : Pronounced BWR A

Debentures {Outlook Stable) {Outlook Stable)

Unsecured Non-Convertible BWR A-: Pronounced BWR A Minus | BWR A : Pronounced BWR A

Debentures (Qutlook Stable) {Outlook Stable)

N. Provisions and Contingencies: -

(Amount in Rs)

Break up of “Provisions and Contingencies” shown under the head As at As at
Expenditure in Profit and Loss account 81.03.2016 31.03.2015
Provisions for depreciation on Investment 1,92,00,000 -
Provision for Diminution in value of Non-Current Investments 7,373,717 -
Provisions towards NPA 544,416,9421 858,736,388
Provision madé towards Income tax - 7,322,968
Provision for Standard Assets (40,358,994) 18,212,605
0. Draw Down from Reserves:
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Depreciation - 988,385
Securities Premium - 8,911,350

P. Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs:

a) Concentration of Advances

(Amount in Rs.)

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers

2,908,259,419

Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC

32.54%J

b} Concentration of Exposures

{Amount in Rs.)

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers

3,465,000,000

of the NBFC on horrowers / customers

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure

27.40%

ZOany
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
. CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G0I074649
? : 10th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

¢) Concentration of NPAs
(Amount in Rs.)
675,672,424 |

‘ Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts _ ‘

d) Sector-wisé NPAs:
(AmountinRs. )

Sl No. Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that Sector
1 Agriculture & allied activities -
2 MSME 196,738,088
3 Corporate borrowers 2,294,130,383
4 Services 699,996,844
5 Unsecured personal loans -
6 Auto loans -
e) Movement of NPA:
(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(N Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 15,32% 10.78%
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross) ‘
(a) {Opening balance 2,317,543,273 2,377,365,807
(b) {Additions during the year 1,209,360,059 521,167,213
(c) |[Reductions/write-offs during the year {336,038,017) (580,989,746)
(d) {Closing balance ' 3,190,865,315 2,317,543,273
{iti) Movement of Net NPAs
{a) |Opening balance 710,934,483 1,629,493,411
(b) |Additions during the year 356,840,339 {669,019,6486)
{c) |Reductions/write-offs during the year {(27,935,238) (249,539,281)
{cl) |Closing balance 1,039,839,584 710,934,483
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
{a) |Opening balance 1,606,608,790 747,872,396
(b) |Provisions made during the year 852,519,720 1,190,186,859
(c) |Write-off / write-back of excess provisions (308,102,779) {331,450,465)
{d) | Closing balance 1,606,608,790
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

CIN NO:-U74899DL1895GOI074649

10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

39, Disclosure In terms of Paragraph 13 of Prudential Norms as per Notification No.DNBS.193 DG {VL)-2007
dated February 22, 2007 issued by Reserve Bank of India,

{A) Loans and advances availed, inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars As at 31.03,2016 As at 31.03,2015
Qutstanding Overdue Outstanding Overdue
| a} Debentures/ Bonds
- Secured 1,080,624,393 - 1,051,890,139 -
- Unsecured 1,325,747,935 - | 1,325,747,939 .
b} Deferred Credits -1 - - .
¢) Term Loans {Including demand loan) 2,867,934,297 - 2,401,300,033 | -
d} Inter-carporate loans and borrowing - - - -
¢) Commercial Paper - - - -
f) Other Loans (Cash Credit and Overdraft) 286,532,679 - | 1,132,196,655 -

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any Financial Institution or Bank.

(B) Break up of Loans and Advances including Bills Receivables:

{Amount in Rs) -

Particular As at As at
31.03.2016 . 31.03,2015
a. Secured 3,819,069,773 1,980,716,456
b. Unsecured 6,240,245,325 7,771,224,819
Total 10,059,315,098 9,75.1,94'1,275

(C) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards loan activities:

{Amount in Rs)

Particular

As at
31.03.2016

As at
31.03.2015

{a) Financial Lease
(b) Operating lease
2. Stockon hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets
3. Other loans counting towards AFC activities:
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

1. Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :

ATl o
(b) Loans other than (a) above AN . -
: 5 iy
!:":'? %
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CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G01074649
10th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi ~ 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

(D) Break up of Investments:

(Amount in Rs)

Particular As at As at
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Current Investment
1. Quoted: - -
(i) Shares : Equity - -
! Preference - -
(i) Debentures and Bonds - -
{tn Units of Mutual Funds - -
{iv) Government Securities
{v) Other - -
Unguoted: . .
=1(1) Shares : Equity -
: Preference - -
(it} Debentures and Bonds 19,200,000 19,200,000
(i} Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Other
Long Term Investment
Quoted:
{1 Shares ; Equity 25,228,963 25,228,963
: Preference -
{il) Debentures and Bonds - -
{ifi) Units of Mutual Funds -
{iv) Government Securities -
{(v) Other -
Unguoted: - -
(i) Shares : Equity - -
: Preference - -
(if) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iif) Units of Mutual Funds -
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Other




IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
“CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G 01074649

10th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

(E) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed {including contractual obligations):

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars Amount net of Provisions
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries - -
{b) Companies in the same group - - -
{c) Other related parties - - -
2. Other than related parties 3,819,069,773 | -4,089,219,594 7,908,289,367
Total 3,819,069,773 4,089,219,594 7,908,289,367
{Previous Year) 1,980,716,456 |  6,164,616,036 8,145,332,492

(F) Investor group wise classification of all investment (current and long term) in shares and securities (both

guoted and unquoted):

{Amount in Rs)

Category

Market Value / Break up
of fair value of NAV

Book Value (Net of
provisions)

1. Related Partles
(a) Subsidiaties
(b) Companies in same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties 13,584,977 17,855,246

(previous year) (35,032,923) (44,428,963)

{G) Other Information:
(Amount in Rs)
Particulars As at ’ Asat
) 31.03,2016 31.03,2015

3. Gross Non-Performing Assets

{a} Related Parties - -

{b) Cther than Related Parties 3,190,865,314 2,317,543,273
4. Net Non-Performing Assets

{a) Related Parties - -

{b) Other than Related Parties 1,039,839,583 710,934,490
5. Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts -

LOf
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i Place: New Delhi

IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:—U74899DL1995C50I074649
10th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi ~ 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

41. Monitoring of Fraud

a. In terms of RBI circular No. DNBS.PD.CC. No. 256 /03.10.042 / 2011-12 dated March 02, 2012, the
Company has identified and reported t’olReserve Bank of India one fraud accounts amounting to Rs.
83,690,000 during the current year {Previous year — Rs. 456,654,000). ' '

b. Apart from above in 15 suspected fraud cases out of which in 15 cases criminal complaints have been

filed by the company against borrower companies and other related persons at various police
authorities for detection of frauds. These cases shall be reported to RBI on detection of fraud if any.

42. Advances do not include write-off cases against which legal proceedings In the nature of criminal and / or
civil or pending. Legal expenses on these cases are being Incurred and debited to profit & Loss account,

43. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary.
group g .

As per our audit report of even date attached _

For Chandiwala Virmani & Associates.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants : :
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Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretatry
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